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Corporate Information
NAIEF
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NAIEF
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Unity
Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2011 (the “Year").

FINAL RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Group’s audited consolidated loss attributable to
shareholders was HK$246,407,511 for the Year (2010:
HK$64,961,714). The substantial increase in net loss as
compare to last year was mainly attributable to increase in
realised loss on disposal of its listed investments classified
under investments held for trading and unrealised loss on
listed securities and unlisted debt investments which was
as a result of volatile in equity market in Hong Kong. Loss
per share was HK$0.57 (2010: HK$1.40).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2070: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment company and the
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 27 October 1999 pursuant to Chapter
21 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
Year, the Group remains principally engaged in listed and
unlisted investments in Hong Kong and in other main stock
markets around the world and also in unlisted companies.

During the

Given continuous volatile market condition, the listed
investments held for trading of the Group has suffered
and posted realised loss of HK$63,406,376 (2010:
HK$29,978,152), while the listed available-for-sale
investments reported realised loss of HK$22,224,766
(2010: HK$26,066,323). During the Year, the Board
remained focus on listed equity and unlisted debt securities
in Hong Kong. The Company keep caution in identifying
any investment opportunities to achieve medium-term or
long-term capital appreciation.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

With a view to keep balance of its investment portfolio,
the Board would maintain diversified investment portfolio
to cover a wide range of business sectors, including, but
not limited to, companies engaged in financial sectors,
insurance sector, consumer goods, industrial goods and
manufacturing sector, property sector, retailing and
services sector, green energy and natural resources sectors.

The classification of financial assets of the Group as at 31
December 2011 was as follows:

RTHBREMASTERR EFakH
RETEREES  UREEEZTE
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Percentage of
the Group’s

Market consolidated
value/ net assets
fair value value
wiE, EEREERE
ARE EEFERS L
HK$
it
Available-for-sale investments At ERE 166,692,542 89.80%
Financial assets at fair value BRBRZALEYER
through profit or loss ZEMEE 90,143,081 48.56%
256,835,623

Details of top ten investments of the Group are set out in
note 16(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resource and Capital Structure
The Group’s asset portfolio was mainly financed by
internally generated cash resources and fund raising
activities. As at 31 December 2011, net current assets
of the Group amounted to HK$18,627,101 (2010:
HK$148,384,785) with a cash and bank balances of
HK$1,413,801 (2010: HK$3,851,951). The consolidated
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

net asset value per share of the Company as at 31
December 2011 was HK$0.43 (2010: HK$1.12). The
consolidated net asset value per share as at 31 December
2011 is calculated based on the net assets of the Group
of HK$185,634,471 (2010: HK$473,981,496) and
431,189,338 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at
that date (2070: 422,689,338 shares).

There was no material change in available credit facilities
when compared with the financial year ended 31
December 2010. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had
HK$50 million (2070: HK$Nil) unsecured, interest bearing
short-term borrowing which was settled after the Year.
The gearing ratio of the Group was 28.65% as at 31
December 2011 (2010: 1.54%), which is calculated based
on the Group’s total liabilities divided by its total assets.
Taking into account of the amount of liquid assets in hand
and available short-term or margin loan facilities and there
was no material capital commitment, the Board are of the
view that the Group has sufficient financial resources to
meet its ongoing operational requirements.

On 11 April 2011, the Company completed a subscription
of 8,500,000 shares at a price of HK$0.30 per subscription
share and approximately HK$2.49 million net proceeds
was received and used for general working capital of the
Group. The Board has been actively seeking fund raising
opportunities to strengthen the Company’s financial
position.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

Charge of Assets and Margin Facilities

Details of charge of assets and margin facilities of the
Group as of 31 December 2011 are set out in note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities of the Company as of 31 December
2011 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

As at 31 December 2011, the majority of the Group's
investments were either denominated in Hong Kong dollars
or Singapore dollars. The Group considers its exposure to
foreign exchange risk was not significant, therefore, no
financial instruments was made to hedge such exposures.

PROSPECTS

The investment environment in 2011 was affected by
continuing global economic uncertainties, including the
deepening sovereign debt crisis in the eurozone and the
fragility of the US economic recovery. As a result, the
growth momentum in Hong Kong eased in the second half
of the year as external demand slowed.

In 2012, the prevailing economic uncertainties in the
eurozone and the US will continue to dominate globally.
Downside risks have escalated in the world economic
outlook.

On the other hand, economic growth on the Mainland
continues to moderate, although its economy remains
among the fastest growing in the world. The high
inflationary pressure on the Mainland has begun to ease
after peaking in July. Under these circumstances, China’s
central bank has cut the reserve requirement ratio for
commercial lenders twice since December 2011 in a sign it
is easing monetary policy to stimulate domestic demand.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

Against this backdrop, Hong Kong’s economic growth
is likely to slow this year. Exports should continue to
soften given weakening external demand, but domestic
demand should remain resilient on the back of steady
income growth accompanied by the lowest unemployment
rate ever reported these years, the continued expansion
of public sector construction works, and the moderate
economic growth on the Mainland.

2012 is undoubtedly full of challenges with the volatile
financial markets and uncertain recovery trends in the
world’s major economies. Although the market is still full
of uncertainties, there are still abundant opportunities to
capture. We are well prepared to face these challenges.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had eleven
employees, including four executive directors, three
independent non-executive directors and four staff. They
are remunerated based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market standards. Total staff
costs paid for the Year amounted to HK$3,830,974 (2010:
HK$3,132,054) and there has been no significant change
in the Group’s remuneration policy.

Comprehensive disclosure of directors’ emoluments
pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is set out in note 11(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEEN WA

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express
our appreciation to the staff and management team of the
Group for their contribution during the Year and also to
give our sincere gratitude to all our shareholders for their
continuous support.

By order of the Board
Unity Investments Holdings Limited

B-REEZERERLA

KITCHELL Osman Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012
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Biographical Details of Directors
SR EAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin (“Mr. KITCHELL"), aged 47,
a Canadian citizen, completed his high-school education
in Hong Kong and undergraduate studies in Canada.
Mr. KITCHELL had obtained a honourary diploma from
Pickering College in Canada. Mr. KITCHELL studied
Economics in the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr.
KITCHELL is a veteran investor mainly in the Hong
Kong equity markets with over 15 years experience. Mr.
KITCHELL had been an investor managing a private family
fund. Mr. KITCHELL was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 10 January 2005 and also appointed
as the chief executive officer of the Company on 17
January 2006. Mr. KITCHELL was elected as chairman of
the Company on 16 January 2008.

Mr. CHAN Yin, David (“Mr. CHAN"), aged 51,
Singaporean, holds an MBA and a Degree of Bachelor
of Business Administration from Simon Fraser University,
Canada. Mr. CHAN has over 20 years of experience in
the asset management industry. Mr. CHAN had been an
executive director at Centurion Investment Management
Pte Ltd where he was the Head of Alternative and
Listed Equity Products. Prior to this, Mr. CHAN was a
Managing Partner of Swiss-Asia Financial Service Pte. Ltd,
a Managing Director at AGF Asset Management Asia Ltd
and an Associate Director of Investment at Nomura Capital
Management (Singapore) Ltd. Mr. CHAN started his
career as a Fund Management Officer at Overseas Union
Bank. Mr. CHAN is currently also an independent director
of Synear Food Holdings Limited (stock code: 7Z75) and
Changtian Plastic & Chemical Limited (stock code: D2V),
both companies are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Limited. Mr. CHAN was appointed as an executive director
and vice chairman of the Company on 23 May 2011.
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Biographical Details of Directors
SR EAERE

Ms. DAVIS Angela Hendricks (“Ms. DAVIS"), aged 45,
holds Master of Laws Degree, Juris Doctor, cum laude,
and a Bachelor of Science Degree, cum laude. Ms. DAVIS
is a member of the Kentucky Bar Association. Ms. DAVIS
has extensive experience as a commercial litigator in the
Louisville, Kentucky offices of Stites & Harbison, and
as a deal lawyer in the New York and Beijing offices of
Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison. Ms. DAVIS was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 18
June 2008.

Ms. CHOI Ka Wing (“Ms. CHOI"), aged 29, completed
her high-school education in Hong Kong and had
further her studies at the Perth Institute of Business
and Technology in Perth, Australia. Ms. CHOI worked in
customer services in the catering division of a 5 star hotel
in Hong Kong for over one year and gained experience
in the food and beverage and entertainment businesses.
Ms. CHOI was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 9 October 2006.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen (“Mr. CHUNG"), aged
55, obtained a Bachelor Degree of Science from the
Wharton School of Business, University of Pennsylvania,
United States of America. Mr. CHUNG is one of the
founders and executive directors of SDM Dental Inc.,
an investment holding company which operating dental
clinics in The People Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr.
CHUNG has extensive experience in investments in the
PRC. Mr. CHUNG had been an independent non-executive
director of Computech Holdings Limited (stock code:
8081), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange, for the period from 30 September
2004 to 30 June 2011. Mr. CHUNG was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 16
March 2004.
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Biographical Details of Directors
SR EAERE

Mr. TSANG Wing Ki (“Mr. TSANG"), aged 50, obtained a
master's degree in professional accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. TSANG is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. TSANG has more than 20 years of experience in
auditing and financial accounting. Mr. TSANG had been
an executive director of Noble Jewelry Holdings Limited
(stock code: 475), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, for the period from 15 August 2008
to 20 December 2011. Mr. TSANG was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 23
September 2004.

Mr. NGAI Wai Kin (“"Mr. NGAI"”), aged 47, holds a
Professional Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic, a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) degree from
the University of London and a Master of Laws degree
from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. NGAI is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia
respectively. Mr. NGAI is also a barrister in England and
Wales and a barrister in Hong Kong. Mr. NGAI has over 20
years of experience in finance and accounting field in both
Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. NGAI was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 23
July 2008.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWmE

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are
pleased to present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are investment
holding. During the Year, the Group was principally
engaged in listed and unlisted investments in Hong Kong
and in other main stock markets around the world and
also in unlisted companies.

The segment information of the Group for the Year is set
out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2011 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 36
to 103.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the
Year (2010: Nil) and the Board does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the Year (2070: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements, with any restated
or reclassified figure if applicable, is set out on page 104.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the Year in share capital
of the Company are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to
the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHAN Yin, David (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 23 May 2011)
Ms. DAVIS Angela Hendricks
Ms. CHOI Ka Wing

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen

Mr. TSANG Wing Ki

Mr. NGAI Wai Kin

Biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 10 to
12.

In accordance with Article 157 of the articles of association
of the Company, Ms. DAVIS Angela Hendricks, Mr. CHUNG
Kong Fei, Stephen and Mr. NGAI Wai Kin shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.
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None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 23 to 32.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST-
PAID EMPLOYEES

Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors and the
five highest-paid employees of the Group during the Year
are set out in note 11(a) and 11(b) to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions
of Directors and the chief executives of the Company
and/or any of their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or other associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange was as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company REQAREBRZHER
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Number of  capital of the
Name of Director Capacity shares held Company
SR YN
FRrs IR 2 #®ITRA
EEnE &4 A BHABDE
CHOI Ka Wing Beneficial owner 1,253,250 0.29%
2RA EnEB A
DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR EEWBROBES ZHER

DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate, neither the Directors nor any
of their spouses or children under age of eighteen, had
any right to subscribe for the securities or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party to and in which Directors had a material
interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

1 6 ANNUAL REPORT 2011  Unity Investments Holdings Limited

SRR a MG ImARM 21 (BT E ] —&
FIEEI  RAFEATMAERE - A2
Al E AT B~ A B 2 BT S A i
SRR RRIBARR ST E A E 2k
M ERES (BRES) MEm 28
MEFHIMRF BB RMmTN\BET
T ERETEITEENRBERNRR]ZES

EENEREN2ERE

ZAN/NCI RSO =PNIE RN g
RIS AFE Z TR RER] S AR E %
GERBESERAHEEAETERE
BLIBREHK



Directors’ Report
EEEWmE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of new share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 2 May 2003 and movements in share option
scheme of the Company during the Year are set out in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement
scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong to all staff. Under
the Scheme, employer and employees are each required
to make contributions to the Scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000 and contributions to the
Scheme vested immediately.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S SHARE

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company during the Year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2011, the register of interests in shares
and/or underlying shares and short positions maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of
the SFO showed that the following interests in shares
and/or underlying shares representing 5% or more of the
Company'’s issued share capital.

B RESTE

KRB —_EZE=FRA _HMERZH
BRETEIUNEREAERNEAFEZE
BFBEENGA SRR E21 -

EIRETE
REBBERSATELESFTENEA A
B TIRMERTHFERNTE ([T
Bl - BEZTE BEXREESB AR
BREBBWAZS5%MAZTEER R -
EB@AWALRE A AE%20,0007T © MR
ZETEWEL KA RS -

BE - HEFE@AXRQAT KRG

RARFEER » NRE S HE AN B FH]
BRAFERE HEHBRAREZE
] &S

REEZRBERAZEATHREE
ERRERRARE

R-ZE——F+-A=+—8 #WER
AR 1 5 % I 1 15 B B XVER 3361577
BRI RARBROER AR E
MATE - THEHREG & RBRBRA
A B D AR BITRAS% A £ 218

z
5 o
N

E—REERARAAA 2011 F&®

17



Directors’ Report
EEEWmE

Number of
shares and/or Approximate
Capacity in which underlying percentage of
Name of shareholders such interest is held shares held shareholding
FERBR,~ B #E
RERER BEEZEzEH AR BB BMABEI
Freeman Financial Corporation Interest of controlled 45,354,000 10.52%
Limited corporation (Note 1)
REGEERER QA THEE 2 s (Hiat1)
1,121,092,276 66.67%
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(Hiat2) (H1at3)
Asia Hunter Global Limited Interest of controlled 45,354,000 10.52%
Asia Hunter Global Limited corporation (Note 1)
2HER 2 s (Hiat1)
Smart Jump Corporation Beneficial owner 45,354,000 10.52%
Smart Jump Corporation E=EAA (Note 1)
(Krat1)
Freeman Financial Investment Interest of controlled 1,121,092,276 66.67 %
Corporation corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
Freeman Financial Investment THEE 2 s (Hat2) (H1at3)
Corporation
Ambition Union Limited Interest of controlled 1,121,092,276 66.67%
EHEAR AR corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
THEE 2 s (Hiat2) (H1at3)
Freeman United Investments Interest of controlled 1,121,092,276 66.67%
Limited corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
Freeman United Investments THEE 2 (Hfet2) (H1:£3)
Limited
Dynastic Union Limited Interest of controlled 1,121,092,276 66.67%
Dynastic Union Limited corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
AR 2 (Hfat2) (H1at3)
Freeman Securities Limited Beneficial owner 1,121,092,276 66.67%
ERSFHR AT EmEE A (Note 2) (Note 3)
(Hiat2) (H1aE3)
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EFERRE
Notes:

Based on the filings under the SFO, these shares are held
by Smart Jump Corporation, which is wholly-owned by
Asia Hunter Global Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Freeman Financial Corporation Limited (“Freeman”).

There are the rights shares to the maximum extent which
Freeman Securities Limited has underwritten in respect of
the proposed rights issue as referring to the Company’s
announcement and circular dated 11 October 2011 and
4 January 2012 respectively (the “Rights Issue”). As
Freeman Securities Limited is a subsidiary of Freeman,
Freeman is deemed to be interested in these underlying
shares under the SFO.

The percentage of shareholding in the Company is
calculated on the basis of 1,681,638,414 shares in issue
immediately after completion of the Rights Issue (assuming
issue of rights shares at the maximum extent).

All interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no

person (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had notified the Company of an interest

or short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares

of the Company, being 5% or more of the issued shares

capital of the Company that was required to be maintained
pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, as set out in the circular of the Company
dated 7 October 2009, the Group carried out the following
continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Master
Transactions Agreement dated 16 September 2009 entered
into between the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) and Hennabun Capital Group Limited (for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) (“HCG Group”)
which was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company on 5 November 2009 and are subject to the
reporting requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing
Rules. Details of the continuing connected transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2011 were summarised
herein below:

FERERXS

RAFE B —FTThhF+AEAAE
ZADNRBHFT  AEBBRBEAAR (K
=AG REMEAF) EHennabun Capital
Group Limited (REAXR & K HH B A &)
(THCGER® ) R=—ZEZTAFNA+/NBF]
VUZERSGHBETTIFERERS -
ERBERERSER-_ZETNF+—A
FTHEARRQR B REAE - WHEST £
MR AFE14A 461G 2 BIRRTE - RBE
E——F+-A=+—BHULFEZFEH
ERGZFEBRMmT

Nature of transactions Amount
REME -
HK$'000
BT
(approximate)
(#49)
Financial services provided by HCG Group to the Group
(including brokerage, investment management services,
financial advisory services and interest on margin financing) (Note 1) 4,294
HHCGEB RSB RHM GRS (BRELL  RETERS -
TRERRBLRESEEZMNE) (K1)
Margin facilities provided by HCG Group to the Group
(margin trading and financing facilities including interest
on margin financing) (Note 2) 47,280

HHCGEEMAEBRHEESEE (RESXFEREEE

BERBSEEZMNE) (Hi72)
Notes:

1. The investment management services refer to the
investment management services provided by CU
Investment Management Limited (“CUIM") under
investment management agreement at a flat rate of
HK$60,000 per month up to 30 June 2011 and on 30
June 2011, the investment management fee was revised to
HK$100,000 per month for the period from 1 July 2011 to
31 December 2011. Pursuant to Rule 21.13 of the Listing
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Rules, the investment manager is defined as connected
person of the Company. On 9 December 2011, the
Company and CUIM renewed the investment management
agreement for one year up to 31 December 2012 at the
same terms at a management fee of HK$100,000 per
month payable in advance.

2. The amounts payable for margin facilities are determined
on a revolving facility basis and refer to the maximum
amount which may be outstanding at any given time.

3. The continuing connected transactions which have
been carried out in 2011 and disclosed above does not
constitute related party transactions pursuant to the
requirements under HKAS 24 (Revised): Related Party
Disclosures.

The Board engaged Mazars CPA Limited, the auditor of
the Company, to perform certain agreed upon procedures
in respect of the continuing connected transactions to
assist the Board to evaluate if the continuing connected
transactions are in accordance with the requirements of
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. Mazars CPA Limited
has reported their actual findings on these procedures to
the Board. The independent non-executive directors of
the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

i. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

ii. on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available
from (as appropriate) independent third parties and
on arm’s length basis;

iii. in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole; and

iv. without exceeding the relevant annual caps as
disclosed in circular of the Company dated 7
October 2009.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
articles of association of the Company although there are
no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficiency public float in compliance with
Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company as at the date
of this annual report comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen,
Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr. NGAI Wai Kin.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls, auditing and
financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited consolidated financial statements and continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2011.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars
CPA Limited as auditor of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Unity Investments Holdings Limited

B-REEZERERLA

KITCHELL Osman Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is dedicated to an ongoing
enhancement of effective and efficient corporate
governance practice in compliance with the principles
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code
Provision”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company, in
the opinion of the Board, has complied with the Code
Provision with deviations from Code Provision A.2.1 and
A.4.1 as summarised below.

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. KITCHELL
Osman Bin was elected as chairman of the Company on
16 January 2008 and took the role of chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. KITCHELL Osman
Bin possesses essential leadership skills and has extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board is
of the view that currently vesting the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allows for more effective and efficient business planning
and decisions as well as execution of long term business
strategies.
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Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and
be subject to re-election. The Company has not fixed
the term of appointment for non-executive directors,
which constitutes a deviation from Code Provision A.4.1.
However, all non-executive directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
pursuant to Article 157 of the articles of association of the
Company which was amended on 13 September 2005.
As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting those in the
Code Provision.

The current corporate governance practices of the
Company will be reviewed and updated in a timely manner
in order to comply with the requirements of the Code
Provision.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors. The Model Code was sent to each Director
on his/her appointment and any update to the Model
Code released by the Stock Exchange was also sent to all
existing Directors. Upon specific enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code for the
Year.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

(1

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for not only limited to
formulate the corporate strategic and set-up the
business development plans, but also to monitor
and supervise the performance of the management
and review the effectiveness of internal control
including the scope of financial, operational,
compliance and risk management and preparing
and approving financial statements of the Group.
Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of
their responsibilities to shareholders, for the manner
in which business and affairs of the Company are
managed and operated. All Directors have grave
concern, sufficient time and attention to all the
significant issues and affairs of the Group. The day-
to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the executive board
members. Each executive director of the Company
has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience
to hold his/her position in order to ensure that
his/her fiduciary duties can be carried out in an
effective and efficient manner. The Board has
established two board committees, namely Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee (the
“Board Committees”) for overseeing particular of
the Company’s affairs and Nomination Committee
was also established after the Year. The composition
and functions of each committee are described
below. These committees have specific functions and
authority to examine issues and report to the Board
with their recommendations (if appropriate) for the
decision of the Board.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary in respect of compliance
with all applicable rules and regulations. Any
Directors may request independent professional
advice where necessary at the expenses of the
Company in discharging of their duties of the
Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises four executive directors, namely, Mr.
KITCHELL Osman Bin (Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. CHAN Yin, David (Vice Chairman), Ms.
DAVIS Angela Hendricks and Ms. CHOI Ka Wing;
and three independent non-executive directors
("INED(s)"), namely Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen,
Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr. NGAI Wai Kin. Two of
INEDs, namely Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr. NGAI
Wai Kin, have appropriate professional accounting
experience and expertise. The Board membership is
covered by recognised professional legal, accounting
and widely experienced personnel so as to bring
in valuable contribution and different professional
advice for the development of the Company. None
of the Directors have, in any respect, related to each
other in any circumstances.

The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from three INEDs
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and
concluded that they are independent under the
definition of the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 10 to 12.
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N R ES0AE
TERBERHE
(2) Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(3)

The chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company is Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin which
constitutes a deviation from the Code Provision
A.2.1.

The chairman is responsible for the management of
the Board and external corporate communication.
The chief executive officer is responsible for the day-
to-day operation, monitoring performance of the
management and effectiveness of the Company,
including but not limited to, the implementation of
the overall strategy of the Company.

Meeting Records

The Directors convened eleven full Board meetings
during the Year. In addition, executive Board
meetings are convened when necessary to deal
with day-to-day matters that require the Board’s
prompt decision, and are thus usually only executive
directors would be attended. Attendance records of
the Board meetings and the meetings of the Board
Committees during the Year were set out below:

(2)

3)

FERITHEAR

KITCHELL Osman BinZc 4 HEALRD
A EEFRITIHARE S - It SRR a
SFAMECEA 21§
FTHEEEESS 2 EBRYINE -

THRAEFAEERTEE  BEREAR
Al B ERE SHE a%@/_ﬂﬁ
REITARRE 2 BB RES

- £5

EERNAFEARAT —RE2BEFS
G o WA é%’\ﬁ’\ RLEEA
RaTESees URERAESFS

REELREZBEER  HUtERH

E—MREANITEELE - RAFE
EW EreesNEELEeeR
Z T EASRINT

Number of meetings attended/held

HEBTEERY
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Name ®H Exg EBHZEE FMzES
Executive Directors HITES
KITCHELL Osman Bin KITCHELL Osman Bin 11/11 - 212
CHAN Yin, David RR (R —F——F
(appointed on 23 May 2011) A= =HEZ(F) 8/8 - -
DAVIS Angela Hendricks DAVIS Angela Hendricks /11 - -
CHOI Ka Wing EXHE 11/11 - -
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen =R 11/11 2/2 -
TSANG Wing Ki Lok 11/11 2/2 2/2
NGAI Wai Kin nERE 111 22 212

A-RELBAERLT 2011 £, 27
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established
in January 2003. As at the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen, Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr.
NGAI Wai Kin. Mr. NGAI Wai Kin is the chairman of Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include but are
not limited to the following:

o consider and review the appointment, resignation
and removal of external auditor and their fees and
supervision on whether any non-auditing services
has been provided by external auditor and giving of
advice to the Board on employment of auditor

° liaise with the Board and discuss with the external
auditor issues of significance during the audit of the

Group
o review the interim and annual results of the Group
o review the report from the external auditor in

relation to continuing connected transactions

o discuss and monitor with the management on
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control

The terms of reference of Audit Committee is updated
and adopted on 16 March 2012 which is consistent with
the terms set out in the Code Provision from time to time.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice if considers necessary.

2 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2011 Unity Investments Holdings Limited

BIFEESG
ARBIZEAZEEN _ET=F—AK
Mo RAFEHRTIEEH  BEAZEEH=

LB IERTEERAREE - BAGEE
'R BRIERE S AR o BB KRS AR
FERZER -

FHEBE YT EBEOEATRA TS
K IF -

o EERBIIMNEREEN CERME - BHE
KEER R EFH - BB NS ERED AT
R EMFEEZRTS - LA ERED
ZIERAREFERRER

s HEFEHME URXETAKEZE
ZTEMEEINEZBE N mEAE
=

s FEHAKREZHHERFEERS

o FHEINBRBMABSERERSZ

EZEgZBERECEERERY
—E-_F=ATRBRH AFETR
RXXRNE AR - Bt R B @ RHE RN
BRUABITERE YA RERZERNF
BUBEXEER -



Corporate Governance Report
PEERWME

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Year
to review the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 December 2010 and the interim report for the six
months period ended 30 June 2011, which opined that
the preparations of the two sets of financial statements
were in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and practices. Number of attendance of the
Audit Committee meetings are disclosed under the section
headed “Meeting Records” above.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was
established in September 2005 and the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee is updated and adopted on
16 March 2012 and is in compliance with the Code Provision
B.1.3. As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. TSANG Wing
Ki and Mr. NGAI Wai Kin and one executive Director, namely
Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin. Mr. NGAI Wai Kin is the chairman
of Remuneration Committee. Two meetings were held during
the Year to approve and to review the remuneration package
of newly appointed Director and all Directors respectively. No
Director, or any of his/her associates, and executive is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration. Number of attendance
of the Remuneration Committee meeting is disclosed under
the section headed “Meeting Records” above.

BZEERNAFEEEITMAGE - N
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THIENEAZHB®RE - ARSZMN
R B RIEER SR ER R E PR
2o BFZEEERIHERBENLX
[0k | —EIRE -
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Nomination Committee was established on 16 March
2012 with terms of reference to deal with the nomination
of Directors including to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to recommend on matters in
relation to appointments or re-appointments of Directors
so as to ensure the composition of the Board meets the
requirements of the Listing Rules and the Board is capable
to fulfill its obligations in terms of fiduciary duties and can
act in the best interest of the members of the Company.
The Nomination Committee comprises all INEDs, namely
Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen, Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and
Mr. NGAI Wai Kin and two executive Directors, namely Mr.
KITCHELL Osman Bin and Ms. CHOI Ka Wing. Mr. KITCHELL
Osman Bin is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s system
of internal controls and ensure sound and effective internal
controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
assets of the Group, to maintain proper accounting records
for the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication, and to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of the
Group’s internal control is to provide reasonable assurance
against material statement or loss and achievement of the
Group’s objective. During the Year, the Board had reviewed
and ensured the internal control process had been
properly carried out in making the investment decision
and adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
were maintained properly. The Board considers that the
Group’s internal control system covers all material controls,
including financial, operational, risk management functions
and compliance with relevant regulations.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reporting responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor
are set out on pages 33 to 34 of this annual report.
Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view for the year ended 31 December
2011 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Directors
also acknowledge that the publication of the financial
statements should be distributed to the shareholders of
the Company in a timely manner.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Mazars CPA Limited was re-appointed as the auditor of
the Group at the annual general meeting held on 30
June 2011 and the Directors were authorised to fix their
remuneration. The remuneration paid/payable to Mazars
CPA Limited in respect of audit for the Year and non-
audit services during the Year were HK$400,000 and
HK$8,000 respectively (2070: HK$380,000 and HK$24,500
respectively).

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND COMMUNICATION

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency that Company’s website (www.unity913.com)
has been established as a means to communicate with
shareholders and investors.

The Board aim to ensure that its shareholders are kept
well informed of key business imperatives in a timely
and accurate manner. Extensive information about the
Company’s activities was provided in its annual report,
interim report, announcements and circulars.
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The Board convened annual general meeting and other
general meetings as the principal channel to meet and
communicate with the shareholders of the Company.
Individual resolution in response to specific issues
(including proposals in relation to renewal of continuing
connected transactions) had been put forward to
shareholders of the Company to consider at the general
meetings during the Year. In each general meeting held
during the Year, the Board had ensured that Tricor Tengis
Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar, acted
as scrutineer in each occasion for all vote cast at the
general meeting.

The chairman of the Company and the chairman of the
Board Committees were available to answer questions at
the annual general meeting held on 30 June 2011 and
extraordinary general meetings held on 29 December 2011
respectively.
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i

o MAZARS

Y

To the shareholders of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Unity Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out
on pages 36 to 103, which comprise the consolidated
and the Company’s statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2011, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Mazars CPA LIMITED

B T vt T 7 PR A
42nd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION =

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements RNAZEENR A AU BRERBRIES S
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of BRELENEETRZANTLTHEBLR B0
the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2011 H €N _ZE——F+_-_A=+—8H
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then Z2HBRAN BEEBEHZZHLEFEZ
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting EEEBESRE  WEIRBRES QRN
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance BRI T BRE -

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited BEETHMEXMERAT
Certified Public Accountants BB AT

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012 &k —FE——F=H+XH
Fung Shiu Hang BIkE

Practising Certificate number: P04793 HEFERT - P04793
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EmiiamR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

2011 2010
—E--F —Z-TF
Note HK$ HK$
Wizt il B
Turnover £ 4 (63,406,376) (29,978,152)
Other revenue il 4 547,676 2,851,091
Other income Hip A 5 2,391,416 -
Changes in fair value of listed equity BEFEEERENEZ
investments classified under TTREEREY
investments held for trading NHhEE Eﬁj (45,735,070) 6,338,759
Changes in fair value of unlisted debt BRBREANEEN
investments designated as at fair value FLME ﬁx Bz
through profit or loss NAEED (13,000,000) 10,000,000
Impairment of unlisted equity investments REAEHERENELZ
classified under available-for-sale investments FEETERIZE ZRIE - (8,530,916)
Impairment of listed equity investments $E'<T)’@Tﬁiﬁj’§&§“*ﬁz
classified under available-for-sale investments FTERREZRE (91,881,944) (8,765,700)
Realised loss on disposal of listed equity HEREASLEREN L
investments classified under available- ITTERERECEERER
for-sale investments (22,224,766) (26,066,323)
Realised loss on disposal of HEREAIHLERES R
unlisted equity investments classified ZIELTERRE L
under available-for-sale investments EEREE (1,218,332) -
Gain on redemption of unlisted debt BEURLERENE L
investments classified under available- FIEMEKKRELZ
for-sale investments i @Llﬁl 1,526,250 2,000,000
Other operating expenses HiEemY (11,785,069) (11,635,463)
Finance costs BERK 7 (1,621,296) (1,175,010)
Loss before tax BRBE AT B8 7 (246,407,511) (64,961,714)
Income tax expense FMEHRX 8 - -
Loss for the year attributable to ARREREAERL
equity holders of the Company FRER 9 (246,407,511) (64,961,714)
Other comprehensive loss Hitt2EER
Changes in fair value of AHEREC DA EEE
available-for-sale investments (159,771,356) (65,407,022)
Realisation upon disposal of available- HERHEERERER
for-sale investments 23,443,098 26,066,323
Transfer to profit or loss upon impairment of RAREEREHRAER
available-for-sale investments ERTER 91,881,944 8,765,700
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREMZEER (44,446,314) (30,574,999
Total comprehensive loss for the year KARERHEAEBGEER
attributable to equity holders of BR2EFE
the Company (290,853,825) (95,536,713)
Loss per share - Basic and Diluted BREE-EXAREE 10 (0.57) (1.40)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fra MR

As at 31 December 2011
RZF——F+H=4+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Note HKS$ HK$
orz3 B B
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 12(a) 314,828 2,395,155
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 14 166,692,542 323,201,556
167,007,370 325,596,711
Current assets REIEE
Available-for-sale investments —H/\u“_n ERE 14 - 3,600,000
Financial assets at fair value FEREREARL
through profit or loss DIEE 7 SR EE 15 90,143,081 134,647,893
Other receivables E i e U 3 17 1,596,149 13,699,205
Bank balances and cash RITEFRIAS 1,413,801 3,851,951
93,153,031 155,799,049
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H R R
&R 1,661,384 551,621
Due to securities brokers SEL g yn < T 22,864,546 6,862,643
Interest-bearing borrowing TEMER 18 50,000,000 -
74,525,930 7,414,264
Net current assets REBEEFHE 18,627,101 148,384,785
NET ASSETS EEFE 185,634,471 473,981,496
Capital and reserves RA K &S
Share capital N 19 4,311,893 4,226,893
Reserves & 181,322,578 469,754,603
TOTAL EQUITY HpER 185,634,471 473,981,496
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of EBE#&HEFEN_T——-F=AF+/ Bt
Directors on 16 March 2012. JE R PR RETIEE
KITCHELL Osman Bin CHOI Ka Wing
Director ERHE
1 Director
EE
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Statement of Financial Position

BA ¥R 3=
As at 31 December 2011
R-F——F+=H=+—~

2011 2010
—E-—-F —EB-EF
Note HKS$ HK$
k=3 B ot
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N RE 12(b) 314,828 633,656
Interests in subsidiaries i SEENGIPA: 13 226,534,736 456,631,113
226,849,564 457,264,769
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value BRABREALE
through profit or loss FIR 7 & R A = 15 7,685,069 13,156,000
Other receivables Hib e 17 1,595,023 335,179
Bank balances and cash RITHEFNIR® 1,127,222 3,728,193
10,407,314 17,219,372
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H M EN R
JEEtE R 1,622,384 502,621
Interest-bearing borrowing FFREEX 18 50,000,000 -
51,622,384 502,621
Net current (liabilities) assets RE (BB EEEE (41,215,070) 16,716,751
NET ASSETS BEEFE 185,634,494 473,981,520
Capital and reserves RA R EE
Share capital N 19 4,311,893 4,226,893
Reserves & 20 181,322,601 469,754,627
TOTAL EQUITY HpER 185,634,494 473,981,520

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 16 March 2012.

KITCHELL Osman Bin
Director

EF

3 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2011 Unity Investments Holdings Limited

JHE R SRR E o

CHOI Ka Wing
BXRE

Director

EF

ERBESFEN _T—_F=A+B#t



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AR MERK

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

2011 2010
—E-—fF —E-TF
Note HK$ HK$
Hiat B B

OPERATING ACTIVITIES Rexk
Cash used in operations SETHAIES 24 (57,557,638) (136,677,705)
Interest paid AR E (1,162,392) (1,175,010)
Net cash used in operating R 2 P A

activities ReFEE (58,720,030)  (137,852,715)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEK
Acquisition of property, plant WHREMIZ ~ BB &

and equipment e (15,700) (175,034)
Acquisition of available-for-sale WA HEERE

investments (161,197,800) (426,372,661)
Proceeds from disposal of available- HEMHEERSE

for-sale investments PSSR 157,935,457 261,430,866
Proceeds from redemption of BOELEMERKKEE

unlisted debt investments EREE 5,126,250 25,000,000
Proceeds from disposal of property, TEDE BEK

plant and equipment BAEFT SRR 1,380,000 -
Dividends received FriS R & 502,308 2,816,555
Interest received Fir & A& 44,565 30,611
Net cash from (used in) investing REEKHE (FFA)

activities ReFH 3,775,080 (137,269,663)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
Proceeds from rights issues HRRPTIS IR - 220,652,551
Proceeds from placement of shares Bic & %17 FT 1S 518 2,550,000 48,932,600
Proceeds from shares issued BRI AR A T 8351 T

under share option scheme W1 P k18 - 13,576,900
Share issue expenses BT 2AX (43,200) (10,546,864)
New interest-bearing borrowing raised  ¥T{Est B &K 50,000,000 -
Net cash from financing activities mEEBE

ReFH 52,506,800 272,615,187

Net decrease in cash and REeEkREEENZ

cash equivalents WA R (2,438,150) (2,507,191)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzHER

beginning of year HEZEEY 3,851,951 6,359,142
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZEERES

year end, represented by ZEY (28A

bank balances and cash BRITEERRS) 1,413,801 3,851,951
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREZEDHR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
R —F——Ff+ - A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AATRREEARE
Share  Investment Capital
Share Share option revaluation  reduction Accumulated Total
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total
BRE  REEf  HERA

Bx  RBEE e fife B RIEE BRES CHl

HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%-f-8 4,226,893 459,148 864 - 5,036,443 346,585,489 (341,016,193) 469,754,603 473,981,496
Loss for the year ENEE - - - - - (246,407,511) (246,407,511) (246,407,511)
Changes in fair value of available-for- MEHERE7 AL EEY
sale investments - - - (159,771,356) - - (159,771,356) (159,771,356)
Realisation upon disposal of available-for- ~ HETEHERERER
sale investments - - - 13,443,098 - - 23,443,098 23,443,098
Transfer to profit or loss upon impairment R HERE LB RES
of available-for-sale investments BRZER - - - 91,881,944 - - 91881944 91,881,944
Other comprehensive loss for the year ERNEH2AEE - - - (44,446,314) - - (44,446314) (44,446,314)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ EA2EFELE - - - (44,446,314) - (246,407,511) (290,853,825) (290,853,825)
Issue of shares under subscription BEIERIRN 85,000 2,465,000 - - - - 2465000 2,550,000
Share issuie expenses ¥R - (43,200 - - - - (432000 (43,00
Total transactions with owners HEEARSAR 85000 2,421,800 - - - - 2421800 2,506,800
At 31 December 2011 W-§--5+-f=1-A 4,311,893 461,570,664 - (39,409,871) 346,585,489 (587,423,704) 181,322,578 185,634,471
At 1 January 2010 RZE-%%5-A-8 14,387,488 269,446,763 - 35,611,442 346,585,489 (369,515,788) 282,127,906 296,515,394
Loss for the year FMER - - - - - (64.961,714) (64961,714) (64,961,714)
Changes in fair value of available-for- MHHERE7 DL EEY
sale investments - - - (65,407,022) - - (65,407,022) (65,407,022)
Realisation upon disposal of avalable-for- ~ HETEHEREEER
sale investments - - - 26,066,323 - - 26,066,323 26,066,323
Transfer to profit or loss upon impairment AT HELE B RES
of avalable-for-sale investments BREER - - - 8765700 - - 8765700 8765700
Other comprehensive loss for the year EREpZEER - - - (30,574,999) - - (30,574,999) (30,574,999)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERNEAEELE - - - (30,574,999) - (64,961,714) (95,536,713) (95,536,713)
Issue of shares under placements BERERTRG 12,877,000 36,055,600 - - - - 36,055,600 48,932,600
Issue of shares under share option scheme R ESIRIE 2% R 9,738,500 3,838,400 - - - - 3,838400 13,576,900
Equity-settled share-based payment WEEEE RN ARE (3 - - 387,68 - - - 3768 387,628
Transfer to share premium on exercise of  RNEREETEBEEAZROE
share option - 387,628 (387,628) - - - - -
Issue of shares under rights issues REMRETRG 60,685,214 159,967,337 - - - - 159,967,337 220,652,551
Share isslie expenses Eshrrdih - (10,546,864) - - - - (10,546,864)  (10,546,864)
Creation of capital reduction reserve RERAEAEL ZARRARE
pursuant to the capital reorganisation (93,461,309) - - - 93,461,309 - 93,461,309 -
Capital reduction reserve set off against ~ RERAEAMNAHRAFEE
accumulated losses pursuant to BREER
the capital reorganisation - - - - (93,461,309) 93,461,309 - -
Total transactions with owners EREARSHEE (10,160,595) 189,702,101 - - - 93461309 283,163410 273,002,815
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FE+-A=1-H 426,893 459,148,864 - 5,036,443 346,585,489 (341,016,193) 469,754,603 473,981,496
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Unity Investments Holdings Limited was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address
of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of this annual report. The
principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and principal activities of its subsidiaries
are detailed in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements also comply with applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2010 consolidated financial
statements. The adoption of the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year had no significant
effects on the Group’s results and financial position
for the current and prior years. A summary of the
principal accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 was revised to include a new definition
of related party and to provide a partial exemption
from the disclosure requirements in relation to
related party transactions and outstanding balances,
including commitments, with:

(@)  agovernment that has control, joint control or
significant influence over the reporting entity;
and

(b)  another entity that is a related party because
the same government has control, joint
control or significant influence over both the
reporting entity and the other entity.

The Group adopted the new definition in its
accounting policies but such adoption does not
have an effect on the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - Improvements
to HKFRSs 2010

The improvements comprise a number of
improvements to Standards of which Amendments
to HKAS 1 (Revised): Presentation of Financial
Statements: Clarification of statement of changes in
equity is considered to be relevant to the Group. The
Amendments clarify that the reconciliation of each
components of other comprehensive income may
be presented either in the statement of changes in
equity or in the notes to the financial statements.
The Group has decided to present the reconciliation
on the face of the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements is historical
cost, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale investments,
which are measured at fair value as explained in the
accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and all of
its subsidiaries as at 31 December each year. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting year as that of the Company
using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceased.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged
to the profit or loss during the year in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives from
the date on which they are available for use and
after taking into account their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method, at the annual
rate of 33-1/3%. Where parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
and depreciated separately.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset is included in profit or
loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date
basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

A financial asset is derecognised when and only
when (i) the Group’s contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or (ii) the
Group transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. A financial liability is derecognised
only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. They are carried at fair
value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised in
profit or loss, which includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are (i) acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives that are
not financial guarantee contracts or designated and
effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on a different basis; or (ii) they are
part of a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities that are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) they
contain embedded derivatives that would need to be
separately recorded.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

The Group uses the Binomial Tree Pricing Model to
determine the fair value of debt investments that
are not traded in an active market. Differences may
arise between the fair value at initial recognition
which, in accordance with HKAS 39, is generally
the transaction price and the amount determined at
initial recognition using the valuation technique. Any
such differences are charged or credited to profit or
loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including other receivables
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are not held for trading.
They are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, except where receivables
are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would
be insignificant. In such case, the receivables are
stated at cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition over the year to maturity.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or through the amortisation process are
recognised in the profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured
at fair value with changes in value recognised in
investment revaluation reserve which is a separate
component of equity until the assets are sold,
collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the
assets are determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
other comprehensive income shall be reclassified to
profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
stated at cost less impairment loss.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether there is objective evidence that
financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are impaired. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of that investment below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. When an
available-for-sale financial asset carried at fair value
is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any previously recognised impairment loss, is
transferred from investment revaluation reserve
to profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
instrument are not reversed through profit or loss.
Any subsequent increase in fair value of available-
for-sale equity instrument after recognition of
impairment loss is recognised in investment
revaluation reserve. Reversal of impairment loss
of available-for-sale debt instruments are reversed
through the profit or loss, if the increase in fair
value of the instrument can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the profit or loss.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

48 ANNUAL REPORT 2011 Unity Investments Holdings Limited

FTESHBE (&)
¢WMIA (&)

EHEERE (&)
RAHHERRREMS - WZIRE
Z AR ERERITE T EREEREK

Ko AR AFTERECEEEE
H—BRAARBIRZAIREESR
BELBRE  HEBEERA (FIRE
AR ERLEH) BERTAAE
ZERE - EARIA TR Z EFDRE
BiER eHREEHFHRERER
@mh e LA SRS T AN BRRE
RZBEBETSEBERRED - 7]
HHERRTAZ QA EREREE
BRE 2 EAERTERRES G
R - WA HEEEHETAZAA
{B3% 08 7] F B S0 B s P RERRURLE
EREAELE 2 EHARE - RIGH
TAZBEBREXBRZSEE -

ERUAAARI Rz AIHEHESRE
E REEEZEEATREEZR
HEEZBEUEREE RTINSO
BERFMZAAARARBESRRERNE
B2 Z%8 - BEREBBETTED -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

l\‘/T\

CRELE T IE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o Breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o It becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

o The disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

The impairment loss of financial assets carried
at amortised cost is measured as the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flow
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group’'s financial liabilities include other
payables and interest-bearing borrowings. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably and on the following bases.

Net income from sale of investments held for trading
are recognised on the transaction date when the
relevant sale and purchase contract is entered into.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews internal and external sources of information
to determine whether its property, plant and
equipment have suffered an impairment loss or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
cost to sell and value in use. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset is capitalised as part of cost of that
asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme are recognised
as an expense in the profit or loss as incurred
and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independent administered
fund.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of each
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises
from initial recognition of goodwill; or other asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties/connected parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to

the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the parent
of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

5 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2011

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a

third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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AR M T

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties/connected parties (Continued)
(Continued)

(b)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(a)

(c)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate
includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint
venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties/connected parties (Continued)

In addition, transactions with connected parties as
defined under the Listing Rules are disclosed in the
Directors’ Report of this annual report.

Critical accounting estimates and judgement
Estimates and assumptions concerning the future
and judgements are made by the management in the
preparation of the financial statements. They affect
the application of the Group’'s accounting policies,
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed
on an on-going basis and are based on experience
and relevant factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of
revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments
For available-for-sale investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in fair value below cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
Judgement is required when determining whether
a decline in fair value has been significant or
prolonged. In making this judgement, the historical
data on market volatility as well as the price of the
specific investment are taken into account. The
Group also takes into account financial information
regarding the issuers/investees.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgement
(Continued)

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company assesses annually if investment
in subsidiaries has suffered any impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKAS 39 in determining whether amounts due
from those entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate
discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause
the adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Fair value estimation

The Group’s unlisted debt securities have been
valued based on the expected cash flows discounted
at current rates applicable for items with similar
terms and risk characteristics, and taking into
consideration the volatility of the underlying asset
and duration to maturity. This valuation requires
the Group to make estimates about expected future
cash flows and discount rates, and hence they are
subject to uncertainty. The fair value of the unlisted
debt securities at the end of the reporting period
was HK$34,000,000 (2010: HK$48,301,600). Details
of the valuation methodology are set out in note
16(c) to the consolidated financial statements.
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BBUBHREENRREH
REETR S SHEE BRI A
AEEYERFRATEGHNAE
E R B R ANE Z i R A 2 & T3
A/ ERT BB B mE AR -

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS 3.
At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a
number of new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has

not early adopted.

Amendments to Severe Hyperinflation and BB HERR  BEZERRIG
HKFRS 1 (Revised) Removal of Fixed Dates FE19F (45155T) BARBEZ
for First-time Adopters (7 Z1EF] Ehal=g-
Amendments to Disclosures — Transfer of BEOBHE RN RE-BF
HKFRS 7 Financial Assets ZE7FE 2B EHEE"
Amendments to Deferred Tax: Recovery of BBBiER BRERE - Yl
HKAS 12 Underlying Assets ) E125 B4 1HEEE
Amendments to Presentation of items of other BEBAEAFEIF RMLEN=ES
HKAS 1 (Revised) comprehensive income @ (#5aT) 21831 ZE2H
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits BB %Eﬁ//% 19% ESEF
—F——
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial BEGIERE27S B KHEEY
Statements @ (ZF——%)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates EEDIERFEI8% /F\Mﬁ%ﬁ/ﬁﬂ& \
and Joint Ventures —E——%F) RENFZKREY
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial ??ﬁéjﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ% HEBEHEY
statements @ Z10%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements TR FREER — AEZHY
EN
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests ?fé@fﬁﬁ%fﬁﬂ ﬁ’u%?(‘ﬁ HEE
with Other Entities “ Z12% Y
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement “ BEGKHLER  AFETEY
Z13%
HK (IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production BE (ARAFHE HEABELERR
Phase of a Surface Mine “ #HZEZ) & RN A
—BEE0%
Amendments to Disclosure — Offsetting Financial BEABREER  RE-HEEHRE
HKFRS 7 Assets and Financial Liabilities @ F792187] REz#EE
Amendments to Presentation — Offsetting Financial BRI B2 EH-BH2HEE
HKAS 32 Assets and Financial Liabilities © ZIBR] REMEEY
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments © BEGBHEER  2HTRY
Z93%
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3.  FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued) 3. EBUMBHMEERRRET (£
o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 o RZE——F A —HBHR &
July 2011 a2 FREBBER
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 @ RZE—ZF—-A—BRZER
January 2012 18 2 FEAIRAER
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ® RZE—Z—F+A—HBH &M
July 2012 a2 FREBBER
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 @ RZE—=F—A B &R
January 2013 18 2 FEAIRAER
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ® RZZE—MFEF-—A—BRZER
January 2014 18 2 FEAIRAER
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ® R-ZE-—LF-—HA B &R
January 2015 18 2 FEARAER
The Group is in the process of assessing the possible REBFEETERKREMNZ S
impact on the future adoption of these new/revised RS ET R AV REER 2 7]
HKFRSs, but are not yet in a position to reasonably BERE  HEE TR EEFEEHA
estimate their impact on the Group’s consolidated SEGEV BRI ITE -
financial statements.
4. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 4. EEER WS
The Group is principally engaged in the investment REBFEXEBRIKE LT RIELT
in listed and unlisted companies. Turnover and NE  AFEEWR 2 EEE M=
revenue recognised during the year are as follows: /AN
2011 2010
—E-—fF —E-TF
HK$ HK$
B 8
Turnover =E
Loss from the sale of listed HENHEARIEEERE
investments classified under < FmigEZEE
investments held for trading (63,406,376) (29,978,152)
Other revenue H itz
Interest income F) B A 44,565 30,611
Dividend income from listed EHREZREBA
investments 502,308 2,816,555
Exchange gain B 5, U5 2 803 3,905
Other income HAUgA - 20
547,676 2,851,091
Total revenue FEN g (62,858,700) (27,127,061)
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5. OTHER INCOME 5. HfkA
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HKS$ HK$
L P
Commission rebate from securities BHLL AR
brokers 1,858,116 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE KR
and equipment s W 533,300 -
2,391,416 -
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION SEE R
For the purpose of internal reporting, the Group AWM E - $$l1§ﬁ [EES
only has one business segment, namely, investments BoE B EMEIFLMEHF K

in listed and unlisted securities. Business segment
information, which is the Group’s primary basis of
segment reporting, is not required as the Group's
turnover, contribution to operating profit, assets and
liabilities are attributable to this only segment.

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
and (ii) the Group's non-current assets other than
financial instruments (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location from which
the Group derives revenue is based on the location
of the markets of the respective investments; and

B HRARBEZERE 827
ZER - BERBEHRENLE—
DEb - MBRREEHDMER (J)
REEDF 2 TERLE) -

TERBOAEBEKE M)A EEIE
mEBEE (@RI ARSI ([HEHE
MBEE]) RBHMESEZEHR -
REERRK G 2 D E T AE B
BEMREM S RERE  MEFEIFRE
BEZMEDRISABEEE YR
[ LA o

geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset.

Specified
Revenues non-current assets
& BEERBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
B —T-%TF ZB-——F —T-%TF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Hong Kong S8 (BEME)
(place of domicile) (62,858,700) (27,849,643) 314,828 2,395,155
Others Hth 3 [2 - 722,582 - -
(62,858,700) (27,127,061) 314,828 2,395,155
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7.

LOSS BEFORE TAX BB AT 1R
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$ HK$
This is stated after charging (crediting): &3 (5t A) : it ok
Finance costs A& R A
Other borrowings wholly repayable HANRATFRBEESE
within five years ZEMER 1,621,296 1,175,010
Staff costs BT
Employee benefits expense, EERAMMAXZ
excluding directors’ remuneration %%@H/}}%‘ﬁl\ 1,226,291 1,065,453
Contributions to defined TEHRGT B
contribution plans 42,965 38,601
1,269,256 1,104,054
Other items HhEH
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A& 400,000 380,000
Depreciation e 1,249,327 2,188,206
Share-based payment in respect of BRHEREERA
share options granted VARR D /R & 2
(NES - 387,628
Operating leases in respect of: BETY&SEZ
KETRA -
office premises ENES Y ES 903,144 883,089
hire of machinery THE# s 94,753 80,069
Disclosures pursuant to Rule BELTHRASE
21.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules 21.12(1) ()& =
Realised loss on disposal of Hj’ijzﬁ?ﬁiéfz
listed investments ~ Z# BI5 &8 85,631,142 56,044,475
Realised surplus on unlisted investments ;HEJ:m&éfZ
O30 Z g (307,918) (2,000,000)
Unrealised loss on listed investments rHREZ
REAIH BB 137,617,014 2,426,941
Unrealised loss (surplus) on ELETIRE ZRE
unlisted investments BB (BR) 13,000,000 (1,469,084)
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8. TAXATION 8.
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided in the

IR

HRAEER _ZE——FER-F—

financial statements as the Group incurred losses for TEEEREHIBEEE - NI EBEMTE
taxation purpose for the years 2011 and 2010. HREABBFE L EE -
Reconciliation of tax expense HIER X ¥ AR
2011 2010
—2——F —ETF
HK$ HK$
B PR
Loss before tax BREERTEE (246,407,511) (64,961,714)
Income tax at applicable tax BEARE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (ZE—FF :165%)
SAEZ G (40,657,239) (10,718,682)
Tax exempt revenue MIAEA R U (334,845) (190,107)
Non-deductible expenses A HUR R 2 1,753,743 421,918
Unrecognised tax losses RNERRIFEE 39,082,177 10,196,318
Utilisation of previously B AT ARERTIEEE
unrecognised tax losses (192,260) -
Unrecognised temporary difference  RERGRZE 348,424 290,553

FABIAR X

Tax expense for the year

9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9.
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Of the loss for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$246,407,511 (2010:
HK$64,961,714), a loss of HK$290,853,826 (2010:
HK$95,536,704) is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.
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10.

11.

LOSS PER SHARE 10. BREE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on BREAREBENDRBERAFEERIFE
the Group’s loss attributable to the equity holders of AEIEARNEE E1B 246,407,511
HK$246,407,511 (2010: HK$64,961,714) and the (= F—FF: 864,961,714
weighted average number of 428,860,571 (2070: JT) &$¢VE§§‘TT AR 2 NAE
46,261,699) ordinary shares in issue during the year. ¥ #0428,860,57 1% (= F — L 4F -
46,261,699/%) i & o
As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares, EA_T——E&_Q TF - AR
diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per EBESECTRR  NEREESER
share in 2011 and 2010. B REREEMER -
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 11. EERSHEEAEMS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=EM=2
The aggregate amount of emoluments RARIEEE W ER 2 B2
received or receivable by the Company’s s
directors were as follows:
2011
—B—-F
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
2R 4:11
B REWNE EBAGHEIER At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Executive directors HiTEE
Kitchell Osman Bin Kitchell Osman Bin - 810,000 12,000 822,000
Chan Yin, David [F - 328,065 7,653 335,718
Davis Angela Hendricks Davis Angela Hendricks - 540,000 12,000 552,000
Choi Ka Wing BRE - 480,000 12,000 492,000
Independent non-executive
directors BUEBTES
Chung Kong Fei, Stephen SR 120,000 - - 120,000
Tsang Wing Ki Bk 120,000 - - 120,000
Ngai Wai Kin HhEhE 120,000 - - 120,000
360,000 2,158,065 43653 2,561,718
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‘e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 11. EERaRATEAEMSE (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) E=M<2 (&)
2010
—T-ZF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits scheme
fees inkind  contributions Total
e 2
BEENE  REWAE  BRAEGEMER Bt
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
B B B B
Executive directors HTEE
Kitchell Osman Bin Kitchell Osman Bin - 708,000 12,000 720,000
Davis Angela Hendricks Davis Angela Hendricks - 460,000 12,000 472,000
Choi Ka Wing B - 464,000 12,000 476,000
Independent non-executive
directors BUFHTES
Chung Kong Fei, Stephen 3 120,000 - - 120,000
Tsang Wing Ki Bk 120,000 - - 120,000
Ngai Wai Kin HER 120,000 - - 120,000
360,000 1,632,000 36,000 2,028,000

Note: All executive directors and independent non-
executive directors are the key management
personnel, also as the related parties, of
the Company. During the year, no other
transactions with related parties have taken
place (2010: Nil).
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‘e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—AUFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 11.

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments
Of the five individuals with highest
emoluments of the Group, four (2070: three)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 11(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the other one (2070: two)
individuals are as follows:

ESRSREEAEME (&)

(b)

BEHMAL
rEBREAESFMALTH -
W (ZF—FF: =F) B
B HFMREREMBEHRE
MEE11(a)# 5 - Eep—& (=
F—FF :mwE5) AL 2E M
BRI

2011 2010

—E——F —E-ZF

HK$ HK$

B i

Salaries and other emoluments & R EH 3 576,000 700,000
Retirement scheme contributions RIS K 12,000 20,200
588,000 720,200

Their emoluments were within the following

WEZH NN FIATEE -

band:
Number of employee
EEEH
2011 2010
—2——fF —E—FF
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 BB TR B
1,000,0007T 1 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Share options granted to the directors of
the Company

Under the share option scheme approved by
the shareholders of the Company on 2 May
2003 (the
of the Company may grant options to those
participants who, in the opinion of the Board,
have contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group and
any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest. During the year, no share options
were granted to the directors. Details of the
Option Scheme and movement in the Option
Scheme during the year are disclosed in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

“Option Scheme”), the directors
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AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - BERRE
(a) Group (a) ZA£E
Leasehold Office Furniture Motor
improvements  equipment and fixtures vehicle Total
HENFEE BAERE HBAREE "E as
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
B B B B ik
Reconciliation of carrying ~ EZ-Z—ZfF
amount - year ended +-A=t-H
31 December 2010 HFEERAE HE
At 1 January 2010 R=ZE-TF—-F—H 652,750 123,602 60,334 3,571,641 4,408,327
Additions NE - 155,434 19,600 - 175,034
Depreciation ik (223,800) (101,443) (52,821)  (1,810,142) (2,188,206
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FF
+-ZA=+-8 428,950 177,593 27,113 1,761,499 2,395,155
Reconciliation of carrying HZ-Z——-%
amount - year ended +ZA=1-8H
31 December 2011 LHEERAECHE
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—A—H 428,950 177,593 27,113 1,761,499 2,395,155
AddITIOHS \/\/J\\E - 15,700 - - 15,700
Depreciation il (223,800) (90,693) (20,035) (914,799) (1,249,327
Disposaliwritten off, net & /H#iss  EE - - - (846,700)  (846,700)
At 31 December 2011 RZE-—-%
tZR=1-H 205,150 102,600 7,078 - 314,828
At 1 January 2011 RZE-——5-A—-H
Cost KA 671,400 481,644 174,315 5,430,425 6,757,784
Accumulated depreciation  Z;H{TE (242,450) (304,051) (147,202)  (3,668,926)  (4,362,629)
428,950 177,593 27,113 1,761,499 2,395,155
At 31 December 2011 RZE-—-fF
tTZA=t-H
Cost B R 671,400 395,852 174,315 3,737,025 4,978,592
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HTE (466,250) (293,252) (167,237)  (3,737,025)  (4,663,764)
205,150 102,600 7,078 - 314,828
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 12. Y% BERRE (&)
(b) Company (b) A&QF
Leasehold Office Furniture
improvements equipment and fixtures Total
HENELEE BLERE BRREE af
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Reconciliation of carrying B2-2-%F
amount — year ended TZA=T—HLEFE
31 December 2010 REE HE
At 1 January 2010 R-_E—TF—-H—H 652,750 123,602 60,334 836,686
Additions NE - 155,434 19,600 175,034
Depreciation e (223,800) (101,443) (52,821) (378,064)
At 31 December 2010 RZE—TF
+ZRA=1+—H 428,950 177,593 27,113 633,656
Reconciliation of carrying EHZE-ZT——f
amount - year ended TZA=+-HLEE
31 December 2011 BEEHE
1 January 2011 R_F——F—HF—H 428,950 177,593 27,113 633,656
Additions HE - 15,700 - 15,700
Depreciation e (223,800) (90,693) (20,035)  (334,528)
At 31 December 2011 R-B——F
+=A=1+-H 205,150 102,600 7,078 314,828
At 1 January 2011 R_F—F—H—H
Cost [BE 671,400 481,644 174,315 1,327,359
Accumulated depreciation  RFITE (242,450) (304,051) (147,202) (693,703)
428,950 177,593 27,113 633,656
At 31 December 2011 RZBE——-f
+=p=t-A
Cost KA 671,400 395,852 174315 1,241,567
Accumulated depreciation e (466,250) (293,252) (167,237) (926,739)
205,150 102,600 7,078 314,828
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13. RHBATZHER
Company
AT
2011 2010
—2——F —EB-FF
HKS$ HK$
it ok
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTI - TR
At 1 January and R—A—BXK
31 December +=-—A=+—H 25 25
Due from subsidiaries JE WL Ff /B8 2 R FRIR 968,874,978 922,977,914
Provision for doubtful debts R (742,340,267)  (466,346,826)
226,534,711 456,631,088
Total &3t 226,534,736 456,631,113
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, R B A ARFIEAEET - 28K
interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment. IR TE R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

RHBLAR 2R (&)
RZE——F+-A=+—HBAHAEARQ
A ZHBARFBOT

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13.
The following is a list of the details of the
subsidiaries held by the Company at 31 December

2011:
Particulars Proportion of nominal
Place of incorporation of issued value of issued capital
Name of subsidiary and type of legal entity  Principal activities share capital held by the Company
B 3L i B BRT  ARAMEERT
WELEEM EEERER IEXRE RAFE RAHEE 2 LA
Directly  Indirectly
B# it
Ample Spring International ~ The British Virgin Islands,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
Limited limited liability company of US$1 each
HRERERRA RBRUAES RERR 1REREE 100% -
BREERAT 1ZTZ BB
Anchor Talent Limited The British Virgin Islands,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
limited liability company of US$1 each
Anchor Talent Limited RERTES REER 1EkEE 100% -
BREEAR 1R BRI
Gedaulia Investments The British Virgin Islands,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share - 100%
Limited limited liability company of US$1 each
Gedaulia Investments EBEUHS RERR REREE - 100%
Limited BREERT 1XT ERR
Great Panorama The British Virgin Islands,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share - 100%
International Limited limited liability company of US$1 each
Great Panorama EBRAHS REER REREE - 100%
International Limited AREERH 1ET 2 EBR
Gufalore Investments The British Virgin Islands,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
Limited limited liability company of US$1 each
Gufalore Investments ABELES REZR IREREE  100% -
Limited BEREEAT (EFPA 3]
Pacific Kingdom The British Virgin Islands, ~ Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
International Limited limited liability company of US$1 each
Pacific Kingdom RBRUAMHS REER RERAEE 100% -
International Limited BREMERAT (A3l
Triumph Way Limited Hong Kong,  Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
limited liability company of HK$1 each
BEARAR EoR REEKR 1REREEEE 100% -
AREFEAR 1T BRI
Visionary Limited The Cayman Islands, Dormant 1 ordinary share - 100%
limited liability company of US$1 each
Visionary Limited AERS TREX 1REREE - 100%
BREERA 1R BRI
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 14. TAHEHERE
Group
AEE
2011 2010
= i ——
Note HKS$ HK$
M et B ke
Equity investment, RERE  BAAE
at fair value
Listed in Hong Kong EEE L 14(b) 160,692,542 314,091,572
Equity investment, at cost RERE  ZHRAK 14(c)
Unlisted in Hong Kong EREBIELT 36,058,300 36,058,300
Impairment loss BEEE 14(d) (30,058,300) (30,058,300)
6,000,000 6,000,000
Unlisted overseas FEFINEET - 11,640,900
Impairment loss WIEEE - (8,530,916)
- 3,109,984
6,000,000 9,109,984
Debt investment, unlisted BEERE
in Hong Kong, EEBFELD
at fair value BARE - 3,600,000
Total a5t 166,692,542 326,801,556
Current portion ENER 14 - (3,600,000)
166,692,542 323,201,556
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
Bz —F——F+ - H=+—HIFZF

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued) 14.

(a)

As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount (a)
of the Group’s interest in the shares or
underlying shares in the following Hong Kong
listed company exceeded 10% of the total

AHEHERE (&)

RZF-——F+ZA=+—
A AEBRUATESE LTA
] 2 B ) 3 4 B A 40 o 2R
ZEHEBOAEERAEZ

assets of the Group. 10% °
Proportion of
nominal value
Particulars of issued
Place of of issued capital held
Name incorporation Principal activities share capital by the Group
AEERE
BEBT BRITEX
a8 AR L it B FEXH RAFE ZBREEHG
Chinese Estates Bermuda Property investment and  Ordinary share of 0.19%
Holdings Limited development, brokerage, HK$0.10 each
securities investment, money
lending and cosmetics
distribution and trading
ZEANEXEERRAR BRE YERBRER SLKRE - LRREREE 0.19%
BARRE - ERIHARD B#0.107T
PECES
Mascotte Holdings Limited Bermuda Trading of investments and ~ Ordinary share of 3.28%
loan financing, manufacture HK$0.10 each
and sale of accessories for
photographic, electrical and
multimedia products and
property investment
SHEEEARAA BRE REABENETRE fER  LRREKREE 3.28%
HERME ETRERBER B0
Bt ARYERE
Heritage International Bermuda Property investments,  Ordinary share of 2.84%
Holdings Limited investment in securities, HK$0.01 each
money lending and
investment holding
ERAZRARRA BRE NERE BHRE-  ERREREE 2.84%
HE R EER BH0.01T
Rising Development Bermuda Investment holding and  Ordinary share of 2.52%
Holdings Limited trading in securities, HK$0.01 each
manufacture and sale of
fur garments, trading of
fur skins and business of
mining natural resources
BREBEERAERAR BRE REERNEFEER HER LRREREE 2.52%
HERERK - ERHEENR BE0.01T
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued) 14. TAHHERE (&)
(b) (b)

Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
HK$ HK$
B ok
Market value of equity REELTRRESZ
securities listed in miE
Hong Kong 160,692,542 314,091,572
Fair value of individually &R H R E 2
impaired available-for-sale A E s B
equity securities ZARE 79,078,226 22,792,921

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group’s available-for-sale equity securities
were individually determined to be impaired
on the basis of a significant or prolonged
decline in their fair value below cost which
indicated that the cost of the Group’s
investment in these items may not be
recovered. Impairment losses on these
investments were recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair value information has not been disclosed
for these equity investments because the
instruments are unlisted and their fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group
intends to hold these investments on a long-
term basis.

RERFREAAE RS - NEE A
H S 5 [l B W E H IR
HE REAREREHIRS
BRARAE » KRN EBEEZ
FHEBE ZREBAEEEXK
Bl - ZEREZREBEZR
EHRAMBmRWM T2t E
ATBUORET Af8as

7,

HRZETAR/RRAELTRE
AR EEERSMETS - BUR
BEREZXSHEaREZARE
BF - AEERERSEEZS
BE -
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BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)
(d)  Provision for diminution in value on unlisted
equity investments

14.

AHEHERE (&)
(d) SEEMRERNERMERERE

2011
—g—-%

Effective Classification

shareholding Recoverable Impairment of financial

interest Cost amount loss assets

ERKRE A AE IR HEFSE tREEDE

HK$ HK$ HK$

(i) Hennabun Capital Group Limited 0.26% 31,000,000 6,000,000 25,000,000 Available-for-sale
("Hennabun")

Hennabun Capital Group Limited A
([Hennabun])

(i) CSN Group Holdings Limited 0.49% 5,058,300 - 5,058,300 Available-for-sale

("CSN Group”)

CSN Group Holdings Limited At e

(CSN Group])
36,058,300 6,000,000 30,058,300

(i) Hennabun is a private company (i) Hennabun® — @ . A

incorporated in British Virgin Island and NA REBE X

is principally engaged in investment SEMKZ - TERSE

holding and its subsidiaries are engaged WEER  EWERA

in securities trading, investment holding NEFFRH  KEE

and provision of brokerage and financial M K fR A8 42 I @ Bt AR

services. % e
(i)  CSN Group is a private company (i)  CSN Group&—REFA

incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and is principally engaged in business
of advertising, media services and
television home shopping.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued) 14. TAHEERE (&)
(d)  Provision for diminution in value on unlisted (d) FELMERKERERE (&)
equity investments (Continued)

2010
—T-TF

Effective Classification
shareholding Recoverable  Impairment of financial
interest Cost amount loss assets
BIRRE KA RAIEFE  EEE SRMEENE

HK$ HK$ HK$

B B B
Hennabun 0.59% 31,000,000 6,000,000 25,000,000 Available-for-sale
Hennabun Ak HE
CSN Group 0.49% 5,058,300 - 5,058,300  Available-for-sale
CSN Group A&

LIC Opportunities Fund (Cayman) ~ Not applicable 11,640,900 3,109,984 8,530,916  Available-for-sale
Limited ("LIC")

LIC Opportunities Fund (Cayman) A Ak E
Limited (LICJ)

47,699,200 9,109,984 38,589,216

The recoverable amount has been assessed AIRERIBEEHREEL2REIR
by the directors with reference to latest BRAIZHEHMAIEHBERHE
available financial information of the investee A o

companies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

15.

16.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 15. ZEBEZRRAABIRZERMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Group Company
rEE b/
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F5 =TT ZE-—-§F —IT-ITF
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Wit ik B ke B
Held for trading BIEEE
Equity investments IR &
Listed in Hong Kong ~ E&E £ 48,458,012 76,790,293 - -
Listed overseas 8o £ 7,685,069 13,156,000 7,685,069 13,156,000
56,143,081 89,946,293 7,685,069 13,156,000
Designated upon NIEAGE D
initial recognition 15(a)
Debt investments EREE
Unlisted in EEBIELM
Hong Kong 16(c) 34,000,000 44,701,600 - -
Total &t 90,143,081 134,647,893 7,685,069 13,156,000
Note: Kzt -
(@)  The debt investments are unlisted convertible notes/ (a) ZEBEBBEKEDEELTA 7%‘5?
bonds issued by listed companies in Hong Kong. T2 LM BRERE EH-
As each of the convertible notes/bonds contains an ARSI BEBEER E5EE R
embedded derivative, the entire notes/bonds meet ARCTES D WEHEE &
the criteria to be designated as financial assets at FUFEERBEREAREE
fair value through profit or loss. REBEE G -
INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO 16. KREMHASE
Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule BIE EMRANE21 1282 HE - K
21.12 of the Listing Rules, the Group discloses: SEERKE
(a)  provision for diminution in value on other (a) HMRERERE LREE
investments as disclosed in note 14(d) to the Eﬂ%#ﬁﬁwufm(d)jﬁ?g ;
consolidated financial statements; and
(b) its ten largest investments and all individual (b)) AEBZTAEERSREHEB

investments with value exceeding 5% of
the Group's gross assets at the end of the
reporting period with brief description of the
investee companies as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+ A=+ AUFE

16. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued) 16. KREHE (&)
Top ten investments TREBE
2011 —E——F
Market value/ Unrealised Dividend
fair value holding received/
Effective Cost as at as at gain (loss) receivable Classification
Number of ~ shareholding 31 December 31 December arising on during of financial
Name of investee company shares held interest 2011 2011 revaluation the year assets
RZB--F HRIF--F EffREEZ
tZA=1t-8 +ZA=t-H AERER  EaBhk/
fiRERREE it ERbE ZHE ZwE/DRE WE (BB EHRE SREEER
HKS HKS HKS$ HK$
(i) Chinese Estates Holdings Limited 3,665,000 0.19% 45,041,500 45,812,500 771,000 73,300 Available-for-sale
i  EAEXEEERAT AfE
(i) Mascotte Holdings Limited 150,000,000 3.28% 60,000,000 34,500,000 (25,500,000) - Available-for-sale
(i) EHEEEERAA AfRHE
(iii)  Rising Development Holdings Limited 35,000,000 2.52% 59,500,000 33,950,000 (25,550,000) - Available-for-sale
i) BREEERERAF ARNE
(iv)  Rising Development Holdings Limited ~ Not applicable ~ Not applicable 10,000,000 10,000,000 - - Designated as fair
(unlisted convertible notes) Sk Stk value through
(V) BREEZRERAT profit or loss
(Frmaakzs) FRERELAEED
(v} Heritage International Holdings 186,853,102 2.84% 47,064,586 24,471,756 (22,586,830) - Held for trading
Limited I5/EEE

() ERERERAT

(vi)  Forefront Group Limited 141,358,696 3.87% 16,817,587 14,418,587 (2,399,000) - Held for trading
M) BAEEERAF REEE
(vii)  ICube Technology Holdings Limited Not applicable ~ Not applicable 17,000,000 14,000,000 (3,000,000) - Designated as fair
(unlisted convertible bonds) il il value through

Vi) HEHETHEERERAT profit or loss
(GEEmaaREs) ERERRL L EED

(viii)  Oriental Ginza Holdings Limited 32,765,000 0.75% 43,100,161 11,959,225 (31,140,936) - Available-for-sale
(viil) RARBERERAT e
(i) China Strategic Holdings Limited 71,686,666 194% 19,809,151 11,039,746 (8,769,405) - Available-for-sale
(N PREEERLA AE
(x)  Hong Kong Life Group Holdings Not applicable ~ Not applicable 20,000,000 10,000,000 (10,000,000) - Designated as fair
Limited (unlisted convertible bonds) NER iR value through

K BEEREEERERAR profit or loss
(G rmaREs) FRRGRLASEED
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BE _F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

16. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued) 16. KREHE (&)
Top ten investments (Continued) TRERE (&)
2010 —E—T&
Market value/ Unrealised Dividend
fair value holding received/
Effective Cost as at as at gain (loss) receivable Classification
Number of  shareholding 31 December 31 December arising on during of financial
Name of investee company shares held interest 2010 2010 revaluation the year assets
RZE-2F  BZE3-%F  EffEEEZ
t-A=+-8 +zZA=t-H AEEER ERER/
FIRENAISTHE e ERmRE A mE/DRE S K& (BR) Bk S SHEEES
HKS HKS HKS HKS
it B ik B
Rising Development Holdings Limited 35,000,000 252% 59,500,000 62,300,000 2,300,000 - Available-for-sale
BREEARARAT AfLE
Oriental Ginza Holdings Limited 42,765,000 390% 62,408,820 62,009,250 (399,570) - Available-for-sale
RNREERER AT ARnE
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited 3,665,000 0.19% 45,041,500 47,058,600 2,017,100 1,502,650 Available-for-sale
EN\EEXEEERAT e
Beijing Yu Sheng Tang Pharmaceutical 100,000,000 3.21% 28,500,000 33,500,000 5,000,000 - Held for trading
Group Limited FEEE
IREEEESEERAT
Golden Resorts Group Limited 50,000,000 0.48% 22,000,000 26,500,000 4,500,000 - Available-for-sale
EeEEERAT AfRHE
G-Resources Group Limited 41,207 352 029% 30,037,405 25,136,485 (4,900,920) - Available-for-sale
BRERERER LA AfLE
Fulbond Holdings Limited Not applicable ~ Not applicable 10,000,000 20,000,000 10,000,000 - Designated as fair
(unlisted convertible notes) TEH TEH value through
BABRERAD CELATARER) profit or loss
FRBERL N EERD
China Strategic Holdings Limited 71,686,666 1.94% 19,809,151 18,996,966 (812,185) - Available-for-sale
PREBERAT ARNE
Freeman Financial Corporation Limited 54,016,818 2.13% 15,020,250 18,635,802 3,615,552 - Held for trading
RELEFRERAT BERE
ICube Technology Holdings Limited Not applicable ~ Not applicable 17,000,000 17,000,000 - - Designated as fair
(unlisted convertible bonds) il A value through
HENETRRERERAT profit or loss
(FLaTaRES) ERBRERANEERD
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

m

HE-—F——F+-A=f—AUFE

16.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
Top ten investments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese
Estates”) was incorporated in Bermuda and the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 127). Chinese Estates
is principally engaged in property investment and
development, brokerage, securities investment,
money lending and cosmetics distribution and
trading. For the financial year ended 31 December
2011, the audited consolidated profit attributable
to equity holders of Chinese Estates was
HK$3,497,816,000 with basic and diluted earnings
per share of HK$1.83. As at 31 December 2011, its
audited consolidated net assets attributable to the
equity holders was HK$35,651,332,000.

Mascotte Holdings Limited (“Mascotte Holdings”)
was incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 136). Mascotte Holdings is principally
engaged in loan financing, trading of investments,
manufacture and sale of accessories for
photographic, electrical and multimedia products
and property investment. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2011, the audited consolidated
loss attributable to equity holders of Mascotte
Holdings was HK$244,800,000 with basic and
diluted loss per share of HK13.28 cents. As at
31 March 2011, its audited consolidated net
assets attributable to the equity holders was
HK$752,654,000.

16.

REHES (&)
TARE (&)

wfat

(i)

(i)

ZANBEEEBRRA ([EAE
¥ RBEREEMKST - ER®D
REFZFTER Em (B KRR -
127) c EANEBEETEREYWE
WERERE  KLER® - BFK
B mE- pEAEEHS -
HE-_ZT—F+=-A=+—H
IEMBEE ZEABEEEERFE
ANELEBZEA RN BEK
3,497,816,0007T + EFARE A & #

ERAFAEEI83 T RE—
—F+-A=+—H8 FEAEFX

BaFBEARBLCERRAEE
SH{E BB 35,651,332,0007T ©

Dﬁﬁﬁt%ﬁﬁi BEiH
REER T ER B (RO RS
136) - SHTEEBEFTEREER
BE REEE - HERHEER
B BFREZERBERRHEAR
MERE - BE_ZT——F=A
—t+—HIEFERFE FHEE
EiEaRHEAREEERREE
18 A& 1£244,800,0007T @ TALE
RERESEBEBABE13.2800 - 1
—E——F=ZRA=+—8" 5
EEEREAREKEREEE
EREAEY752,654,0007T °
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16. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii) and (iv)

Rising Development Holdings Limited (“Rising
Development”) was incorporated in Bermuda and
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1004). Rising
Development is principally engaged in investment
holding and trading in securities, manufacture
and sale of fur garments, trading of fur skins
and business of mining natural resources. For the
financial year ended 31 March 2011, the audited
consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of
Rising Development was HK$114,081,000 with
basic and diluted loss per share of HK8.23 cents.
As at 31 March 2011, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
HK$980,345,000.

Heritage International Holdings Limited (“Heritage
International”) was incorporated in Bermuda and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 412). Heritage International
is principally engaged in property investment,
investments in securities, money lending and
investment holding. For the financial year ended
31 March 2011, the audited consolidated
loss attributable to equity holders of Heritage
International was HK$391,908,000 with basic loss
per share of HK$2.58. As at 31 March 2011, its
audited consolidated net assets attributable to the
equity holders was HK$957,970,000.
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16.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Forefront Group Limited (“Forefront Group”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 885). Forefront Group is principally
engaged in selling and distribution of motor
vehicles, provision of heavy motor vehicle repair
and maintenance services, provision of logistic
services, investment in forest interest, properties
investments, securities trading and money lending.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011,
the audited consolidated loss attributable to equity
holders of Forefront Group was HK$329,308,000
with basic and diluted loss per share of HK$0.12.
As at 31 December 2011, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
HK$954,837,000.

ICube Technology Holdings Limited (“ICube
Technology”) was incorporated in Bermuda and
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 139). ICube
Technology is principally engaged in marketing
and sales of self-developed semi-conductor
processing chips and core architecture for China’s
mobile device market, trading and distribution
of electronic products and other merchandise
and securities investment and trading. For the
financial year ended 31 March 2011, the audited
consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of ICube Technology was HK$46,416,000 with
basic and diluted loss per share of HK1.64 cents.
As at 31 March 2011, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
HK$128,104,000.

16.

REHES (&)

TARE (&)

B - (&)

vy BAKEBERAR ([BH&E])
RASESEMAEL Hikh

(vii)
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EhEEREEEEFEREE
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16.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(viii)

Oriental Ginza Holdings Limited (“Oriental Ginza”)
was incorporated in Bermuda and the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 996). Oriental Ginza is
principally engaged in provision of retail-related
consultancy and management services and property
investment business. For the financial year ended
31 December 2010, the audited consolidated loss
attributable to equity holders of Oriental Ginza was
HK$1,941,000 with basic and diluted loss per share
of HK$0.002. As at 31 December 2010, its audited
consolidated net assets attributable to the equity
holders was HK$1,437,869,000.

China Strategic Holdings Limited (“China
Strategic”) was incorporated in Hong Kong and the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 235). China Strategic
is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading
of battery products and related accessories and
investment in securities. For the financial year
ended 31 December 2010, the audited consolidated
loss attributable to equity holders of China Strategic
was HK$58,641,000 with basic and diluted loss per
share of HK1.59 cents. As at 31 December 2010,
its audited consolidated net assets attributable to
the equity holders was HK$788,174,000.
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16.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(x)

(c)

Hong Kong Life Group Holdings Limited (“Hong
Kong Life Group”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8212). Hong Kong Life Group is principally
engaged in trading of edible oil and mineral
materials, provision of shrine for memorial ancestor
and paper-offering business. For the financial year
ended 30 June 2011, the audited consolidated
loss attributable to equity holders of Hong Kong
Life Group was HK$95,347,000 with basic loss per
share of HK$1.58. As at 30 June 2011, its audited
consolidated net assets attributable to the equity
holders was HK$960,113,000.

Valuation basis of debt investments

The debt investments are unlisted convertible
notes/bonds issued by listed companies in
Hong Kong and classified under financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.
At the end of the reporting period, the
convertible notes/bonds were revalued by
independent professional valuer using the
Binomial Tree Pricing Model. The contractual
maturity of the convertible notes/bonds is
used as an input to this model.

16.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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16. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
(c) Valuation basis of debt investments

16. REMHE (&)
() EEREGEEE (&)

(Continued)
Rising  Hong Kong Life
ICube Technology Development  Group Holdings
Holdings Limited  Holdings Limited Limited Total
PENEFNREE EREEEZR EREDRE
BRAR BRAR ERERAT CH
HKS
ik
Principal amount A28 17,000,000 10,000,000 20,000,000 47,000,000
Date of maturity gl 30 November 2013 13 October 2014 27 May 2016
“F-=f% “E-|E “EE
t-A=1H tAT=R RAZtH+tA
Coupon rate 28 Zero coupon 5% per annum Zero coupon
ZR §E5% ZR
Early redemption clause RRERET (i) (ii) (il
Volatility of underlying BB TR 2 KR
listed shares 54.67% 93.17% 79.71%
Risk-free interest rate (with ~ ZERFZ (82
reference to Hong Kong EEINERLESR)
Exchange Fund Note) 0.34% 0.89% 0.85%
Fair value at 31 December RZZ--f
2011 +ZA=1+-H
ZRARE
HKS HKS HKS HKS
B A B ik
Convertible notestbonds ~ TRREFE /B% 14,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 34,000,000
(i) ICube Technology Holdings Limited may (i) PEMEFREEEGR
redeem the whole or any part of the ANAIREERTRAREEEE
bonds at any time from the issue date HERERAT DR EE
to the maturity date by giving not less XACEAEABAERZ
than seven business days prior notice. BHEEHFIEEWE S -
(i) Rising Development Holdings Limited (i EBREEZEKRAERAQRA
may redeem the whole or any part TETHBREEINHHE
(in an amount or integral multiple of BT RAFEZEERZ
HK$1,000,000) at any time from the issue TR mAMEE D 2 Aok KA
date to the maturity date by giving not fa] #B 15 (LA 7% #1,000,000
less than five business days prior notice. TTZ RN E T BER) o
(ili)  Hong Kong Life Group Holdings Limited (iy ABAPEREEZERERA

may redeem the total amount at par at
any time before maturity by serving at
least seven days prior written notice.
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17. OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. HtEWR
Group Company
rEH ¥ YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF ZEBE-—HF —T-IFTF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ol ks B e
Deposits and e MR
prepayments 1,596,126 349,017 1,595,000 335,156
Due from securities FEUR B H A8 40
brokers 23 13,350,188 23 23
1,596,149 13,699,205 1,595,023 335,179
18. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWING 18. FFEMERK
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$ HK$
B ke
Short term borrowing REHAE R
Unsecured and wholly repayable EEARER=EAA
within 3 months BEER 50,000,000 -

ERERE—HBLIBRERAZ
BEREZRE 2B LR ABK
50,000,0007T * FH|&E5% - H&I&ENR
HEAEMRIZEEFBAME 2
BB =FAA - BEASEERN

e
=

The borrowing represents a revolving loan facility
obtained from an independent finance company
of up to HK$50 million with interest rate at 5%
per annum and the final repayment date within 3
months from the date of drawing appearing on the
first notice of drawing. The amount was repaid in
full in February 2012.
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B BERARM

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

19.

SHARE CAPITAL 19. R
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.10 each HK$0.01 each  Nominal value
BRER BRER
A%0.107 B%0.017
LERYE LERYE HE
Note HKS
it it
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2010 E’;‘:ﬁ—?ﬁ—ﬂ —H 20,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000
Sub-division of shares BORA (20,000,000,000)  200,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2010 and 2011 R-B-BER-B--F
t=A=t-H - 200,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRHR
At 1 January 2010 WZE-2E-F-H 143,874,881 - 14,387,488
Issue of shares under placements REREEIRN 128,770,000 - 12,877,000
Issue of shares under share option scheme R EERIEF 22 TR 97,385,000 - 9,738,500
Issue of shares under rights issue REREETRR 569,279,762 - 56,927,976
Share repurchase RERH (3) - -
Share consolidation Binah (892,344,158) - -
Capital reduction HIARA (46,965,482) 46,965,482 (93,461,309)
- 46,965,482 469,655
Issue of shares under rights issue BREMRETRA - 375,723,856 3,757,238
At 31 December 2010 and R-F-ZF
1 January 2011 TZA=t-Ak
“F——5-A-H - 422,689,338 4,226,893
Issue of shares under subscription RERBETRN (i) - 8,500,000 85,000
At 31 December 2011 R-E--E+-F=1+-H - 431,189,338 4,311,893
Note: /zﬁﬁéf

(i) On 29 March 2011,

the Company entered into

subscription agreement with an independent
investor for subscription of 8,500,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a price
of HK$0.30 per subscription share. The subscription
was completed on 11 April 2011.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu
in all respects with the then existing shares.
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20.

RESERVES 20. f#fE
Company AN
Capital
Share Share option reduction Accumulated
premium Reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE BRERE HARERE B o &t
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
B A% ot ik ks
At 1 January 2011 WZE——F—F—H 459,148,864 - 346,585,489 (335,979,726) 469,754,627
Issue of shares under RERBRIRN
subscription 2,465,000 - - - 2,465,000
Share issue expenses Bk EX (43,200) - - - (43,200)
Total comprehensive loss ERNREEELEE
for the year - - - (290,853,826) (290,853,826)
At 31 December 2011 R-B--%
+=A=t-H 461,570,664 - 346,585,489 (626,833,552) 181,322,601
At 1 January 2010 \ZE-ZE—-F—H 269,446,763 - 346,585,489 (333,904,331) 282,127,921
Issue of shares under RERERTRN
placements 36,055,600 - - - 36,055,600
lssue of share under share REERETE
option scheme Bl 3,838,400 - - - 3,838,400
Fquity-settled share-based IEREE RN A
payment AN - 387,628 - - 387,628
Transfer to share premium on B IRIEIE(T{PES
exercise of share option ERERNAE 387,628 (387,628) - - -
Issue of shares under REERETRG
rights issues 159,967,337 - - - 159,967,337
Share issue expenses BB (10,546,864) - - - (10,546,864)
Creation of capital reduction Wfﬂxﬁi%ﬁ?iz
reserve pursuant to capital BB A G
reorganisation - - 93,461,309 - 93,461,309
Capital reduction reserve BRERREMAN
set off against accumulated BRI A G B
losses pursuant to capital BB ER
reorganisation - - (93,461,309) 93,461,309 -
Total comprehensive loss FR2EBRESR
for the year - - - (95,536,704)  (95,536,704)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF
+ZR=1t-H 459,148,864 - 346,585,489 (335,979,726) 469,754,627
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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20.

21.

RESERVES (Continued)

Company (Continued)

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands,
share premium and capital reduction reserve subject
to the Company’s memorandum and article of
association of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders, which is subject to a solvency
test. The Company had a distributable reserve of
HK$181,322,601 as at 31 December 2011 (2070:
HK$469,754,627).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In light of the requirements of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the "Option Scheme”) on 2 May
2003. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended
subject to resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company, the Option
Scheme will remain in force for ten years from
the date of adoption. Under the Option Scheme,
the directors of the Company may grant options
to those participants who, in the opinion of the
Board, have contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest.
Eligible participants of the Option Scheme include
any directors and employee of any members of
the Group or any invested entities, any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of the
Group or any invested entities and any vendor,
supplier of goods or services or customer of or to
any member of the Group or invested entities.
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21.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of shares to be issued under the
Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any eligible individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’'s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
directors of the Company, substantial shareholder
or any of his or her associates in any one year is
not permitted: (i) to exceed 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time; and (ii)
to have an aggregate value based on the official
closing price of the Company’s share as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant in excess of HK$5 million, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Under the Options Scheme, the options granted
may be accepted within twenty-eight days from
the date of offer upon payment of HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof by the grantee.
Options may be exercised at any time not exceeding
a period of ten years from the date on which
the share option is granted. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, but
in any event shall not less than the highest of: (i)
the official closing price of the Company’s share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of
the official closing price of the Company’s share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

21.
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21. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 21. BRESE (&)
No share options were granted, lapsed, exercised RZE——FHREE - WEERE
or expired under the Option Scheme during the BERERET SR L - K& 171
financial year of 2011. K EIE o
Movement in the Option Scheme during the EBRENZENEBE-ZE—ZFE+=A
year ended 31 December 2010 are disclosed as S+—ALFERZSBHHEAT
follows:
Weighted
average
market
As at Granted  Exercised As at 31 Fair value  Exercise period price
Name of category 1 January during during December  Exercise at grant of share at date of
of participant Date of grant 2010 the year the year 2010 price date options exercise
N-R-8E R-B-8E RELEHZ fiEA
SRERHLR ok -A-B ERRE  EAGE T2A=T-B fEE ME  BRETES nEVHORE
HKS HKS HKS
i % %
Directors of 15 January 2010 - 11,995,000 (11,995,000 - 0.420 0.012 15 January 0420
invested entities 20100
in aggregate 14 January
RREER ESE 2020
o 3%
-AthA -AtHAZ
Z3%%
-AtEA
Directors of 15 October 2010 - 78,400,000  (78,400,000) - 0.100 0.003 15 October 0.099
invested entities 201010
In aggregate 14 October
RRERR 54 200
. R
TATEE TATIRE
e Sk 2
+ATEA
Director of senvice 15 October 2010 - 6,990,000 (6,990,000 - 0.100 0.003 15 October 0.099
provider 201010
RiLER ES 14 October
2020
F% “2-%
TATER TATHAZ
TATEA

- 97,385,000 (97,385,000 -

Weighted average
exercise price - HK$0.14 HK$0.14 -
MEFHEE BB EB0MT
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F——F 1 _H=1—HIFE

22. CHARGE OF ASSETS AND MARGIN FACILITIES 22. EEEARRIBSFEE
As at 31 December 2011, margin facilities from RZB——F+-A=+—H %%
several regulated securities brokers were granted RRERFRLEARNEERBRE
to the Group which were secured by the Group's SEE MZSFEETUREEZA]
available-for-sale investments and investments HHERERFIEERREEER -
held for trading. As at 31 December 2011, a total RZE——F+ZA=+—HB " 2%
amount of HK$22,864,546 (2010: HK$6,862,643) REERSe 1E%22,864,5467T (=
had been utilised against these facilities and F—FF : B156,862,643T) M
the total carrying amount of the available-for- BERATESCLEZAIHEERE
sale investments and investments held for trading RiStEEEREZRERERER
charged to the securities brokers is HK$250,835,623 250,835,6237C (=T —ZFF : B
(2010: HK$452,339,465). 452,339,4657T) °
The margin facilities granted by two of the brokers BEETRE - SHMALLARTE
constituted continuing connected transactions under ZIREFESEEBKFERERS - A
the Listing Rules and the relevant disclosures are ARBEINAFRCEFTGREN °
made in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.
23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. RIEHIE
Recognised deferred tax assets (liabilities) of AEERAZELHEEE (BEF)
the Group
Assets Liabilities
BE =N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F —_T-TF ZB-——F —T-IFTF
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
ik 5 i ot
Depreciation TERTEE
allowances - - - (218,080)
Tax losses TIEE1E - 218,080 - -
Deferred tax assets RIEHIREE
(liabilities) (BfE) - 218,080 - (218,080
Offset deferred tax HIHEERIBE BE
assets and liabilities rafE - (218,080) - 218,080
Net deferred tax FEERIEEE
assets (liabilities) (BfB) H&E - - - -
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Bz —F——F+-H=+—HIFZF

23. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 23. EEHE (E)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from EATEEMEE ZRBERELERE
BE

2011 2010
—E-—fF —E-TF
HK$ HK$
Deductible temporary differences AR E R =R 362,287 105,622
Tax losses % e 1 936,172,269 699,227,602
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 936,534,556 699,333,224
Neither the tax losses nor the deductible temporary RIBIRITH ARG - WA E B & A H
differences expire under current tax legislation. PRETRSZFIARE W o R ARIKER
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in MmN KA et A EE T EAHE
respect of these items because it is not probable Flzs - WA MBI FIE B RIELED

that future taxable profit will be available against HERE o

which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.
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24. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 2. EEFARSE
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$ HK$
B ke
Loss before taxation B 70 Al B 18 (246,407,511) (64,961,714)
Depreciation e 1,249,327 2,188,206
Changes in fair value of listed BRIBFIEEEREN B
equity investments classified FHRERREZARE
under investments held for =
trading 45,735,070 (6,338,759)
Changes in fair value of BRBERERANEEID 2
unlisted debt investments FELEMEBEREZ
designated as fair value NIRELEE)
through profit or loss 13,000,000 (10,000,000)
Impairment of unlisted equity BEBEATHEERES R
investments classified under FELTREREE ZRE
available-for-sale investments - 8,530,916
Impairment of listed equity BEAHEERESEZ
investments classified under IR EZRE
available-for-sale investments 91,881,944 8,765,700
Realised loss on disposal of HERBAIHEERES
listed equity investments L ETERRE
classified under B &R EE
available-for-sale investments 22,224,766 26,066,323
Realised loss on disposal of HERBIHEERESE
unlisted equity investments Z?FLWT’EE*& i
classified under B I8 BT
available-for-sale investments 1,218,332 -
Gain on redemption of unlisted 1RIFFJHEERESFE 2
debt investments classified FELEMEBKEZ
under available-for-sale fE B i 2
investments (1,526,250) (2,000,000)
Equity-settled share-based NS EE RN RER 2
payment (NP - 387,628
Interest income FEMA (44,565) (30,611)
Interest expenses FEMZ 1,621,296 1,175,010
Dividend income Iz B A (502,308) (2,816,555)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEK
plant and equipment F i W (533,300) -
Change in working capital: SELE
Financial assets at fair value FEiRIEE ?;z’&ft@ﬂ,ﬁﬁz
through profit or loss TRIEE (14,230,257) (89,160,502)
Other receivables H th FE R 12,103,056 (13,321,777)
Other payables and accruals EMEMNZNETER 16,652,762 4,838,430
Cash used in operations BEARS (57,557,638) (136,677,705)
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25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 25.

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had
total future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which are
payable as follows:

RN AIE
RZZE——FR_T—ZFTF+_A=
+—8  AEBERBETAEHE  LL
HAOBERRREBN o HEBRERNRLR
UK

2011 2010
2% —E-TF
HK$ HK$
B ok
Within one year —FR 668,337 993,404
In the second to fifth years E_FEERF
(both years inclusive) (BIEEEMSF) 157,462 463,535
825,799 1,456,939
26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 26. HAREE
Financial guarantee issued 28 H 2 M ER

The Company had corporate guarantee for securities
trading account maintained by one of its subsidiaries
with a broker, which were unutilised (2070: HK$Nil)
at the year end date.

The Company has not recognised any deferred
income for the corporate guarantee given in respect
of the securities trading facilities for subsidiaries as
their fair value cannot be reliably measured and their
transactions prices were zero.

The directors of the Company do not consider
probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantee at 31
December 2011 and 2010.
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27.

HE-F——F+ A=+ AUFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’'s major financial instruments include
equity and debt investments, other receivables and
other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and
the policies applied by the Group to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Financial risk factors

Interest rate risk

The Group’'s exposure to market risk for changes
in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
utilisation of margin facilities of securities brokers.

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, if interest rates
had been 200 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the effect on the
Group’s net loss would be minimal.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for both derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 200 basis
point increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
report date. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2010.

27.

cREABEEEERBE

AEEZTBSMTARERARE
BIRE - HAaEWGR - AR -
ZECRMIEZHBRSEWFERE
B HZEeRTEABZERNEAK
SEFEAUREZSERR 2B
T - BREERZERE - AE
REBEBUE S BIEE -

TREREE

FIE 7
AEBRAN RSB MAT 2 THRAR
TEREAKREZEERESELH
RHzREREE -

R_E——FR_T-—ZF+A=
+—H - #FEEH T B200EE
B MATE EM BB TE - By
rEEZEBERFRTEE N -

S R R
MR AR 2 FIR G - B AME
BERNY AEA 2 (T RIS
RTAZFIEEB - Fi% F#% T
20018 £ 5 TYE B B Y E TAER
B39 1 3RS R AT A 2 I B B 2 5
R O e et S L E
AEAAR -
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

As a result of overseas investments included in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
denominated in Singapore Dollars (“SGD"), the
Group is exposed to the movement in the HKD/SGD
exchange rates.

At 31 December 2011, if these currencies had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against HKD with
all other variables kept constant, the Group’s net
loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$384,000 (2070: approximately HK$658,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of those overseas
investments denominated in different currencies.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the end of reporting period and
had been applied to Group’s exposure to currency
risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables remain constant, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The stated
changes in foreign currency represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next
annual report date. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between HKD and USD would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of USD against other currencies. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.
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CHEBREREEERBE (£)
EREBEE (F)

S m B
HRFABZBERRAABIIRZE
BB E 2 BIMRE AR IS T (T3
mETl) FHE - EAKEEEE T
SURT DN T IE R B 2 AR

Eé:?—éffiwL:H =+—8" 4

MmEEEETHEEZBE% -
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬂfﬁwﬂﬁ RIS
EFANBEFEGRLD EMLE
#5384,0007T (ZFE —FF : LB
658,0000r) T EFRBBRE T
B GHE 2 BIMETEFTE & 2 INEIR
@,/ 518 -

EHBRE ST & RRNW®E
R EREE  HZEXFEARN

= EI AEEzHERTAZERER

CMABRMEHRESTE 2
EP?'JYJTZ’EHTM ° RSN BB T
EEEUHE MEFHRA I BEE
RABERBEEF G - UM E -
REETHEX T ZHBERTRETT
AEMERBEEEH IEATE - %
DTERE - T —TF 7 HEREF o
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of short-term borrowings and utilisation of
margin facilities of securities brokers. The Group
will keep reviewing its financial needs from time to
time to determine the timing of obtaining various
borrowings or carrying out fund raising activities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s and
the Company’s liabilities other than interest-bearing
borrowing of HK$24,525,930 and HK$1,622,384
(2010: HK$7,414,264 and HK$502,621) were due on
demand. The interest-bearing borrowing amounted
to HK$50,000,000 (2070: Nil) as shown in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements has been fully
settled after the end of the reporting period.

Price risk

As set out notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, certain of the Group’s available-
for-sale investments and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value at each
reporting period. Therefore, the Group’s investments in
equity securities are exposed to equity price risk while
investments in unlisted convertible debt securities are
exposed to the interest rate risk, the credit risk and the
equity price risk of the underlying shares of the debt
securities issuers. The management manages exposure
to these risks centrally by monitoring the change
of market prices of the equity and debt securities
from time to time, and by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different profiles both in Hong
Kong and overseas. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk. At the reporting date, if the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss had been
5% higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s net loss would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$4,507,000 (2070: decrease/
increase by approximately HK$6,732,000).

Whereas, if the fair value of available-for-sale
investments had been 5% higher/lower with all
other variables remain unchanged, the Group’s
equity will increase/decrease by approximately
HK$8,035,000 (20710: increase/decrease by
approximately HK$15,885,000).

27.

CHEBREEEERBE (£)

TREREE (F)

REBEZ R

AEE B RSB BT FAERERRE
ARFELCERER cREREE <
BRI 2 HEIUSFE -
AEBEIARRESVHHEE - URE
REERERAETEELRD 2K
-

RERALRE KEBRARQ
AZEBEGIFEEBREBIN BB
24,525,9307T & 78 #1,622,38470 (—
E — F i B 74142647 K B
#502621) N EKEEE - 47
BUBHRRM TSI A B
50,000,0007C ( =& — =4 : #£) 75t
BEEREPPRPEREBEEE -

B E R

a0 AR A B 1% ¥R R M sE14%15FT
B AEEZETAHRLERERE
BEZEAREBEIREZEHEERS
WMEMEMZARBEE - Atk A&
B RSB A 2 B BAERABE
B - Mk ERIE LT AT BRER
BHAREEREFEITANBRERK
BERFERE - EERR KRR ER
b  EEREEETHERBRARE
BEFNTMEEZH RNEE R EIN
BB EETRER 2 REHLHEEH
ERZERR - MREDTIIIRIE
BAEBERREL - RSB
MEBBRIEAANBIRZEHE
EZARBEN/HI5%  mAE
HihBHEHITE  BAEEZEE
SFREAG R 1 N4 E 54,507,000
T (ZE—FF : g s E
6,732,0007T) °

WA EREZRAAEEN, R
L5%  METEHEMEH LTI

REEZ RGP L B
8,035,0007T (= F —F4 : 1 f ~
Ji DA E 15,885,000 ) °
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk for all financial
assets that a counterparty in a transaction may
default on settlement. The maximum exposure
equals to the carrying amount of these financial
assets.

The Group's other financial assets, including bank

27.

CHEBREREEERBE (£)

SREAREE (4)

EEAR
AEEASRAERRYTIR
SREABATLTLE ORI
SEERR - ZERREZRZES

BMEEZRAEE -

AEBEEMBERMEE  BRERITHE

balances, unlisted debt investments and other 7 - 3F£mTf%“&§&EI@me
receivables have a maximum exposure of credit risk HrmaEERRBHEENLETIAZ
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. EE@TE REBZRITEFFRRE

The Group’s bank balances are placed with credit-
worthy banks in Hong Kong.

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to provide returns for
shareholders. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments, including
payment of dividend to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, during the years ended 31 December
2011 and 2010.

Pursuant to the provision of articles of association
of the Company, the Company may exercise its
borrowing power to borrow up to an aggregate

BEERIZRIT -

BEXEE
AEBERER 7 BRAREQRT]
FEKETIRMHER TR - AEE
BRI FHEEANRE  BHEAKRXS
RS  REBRREARKBEITHAK
HEEENRDER - RBEE-FT—
—FR-T-—T&E+-A=f—AI
1 EHAELEEE -

RIEA D a4 ER2 A 2 1§63 7T'<
Aﬂ‘mﬁﬁ{a%ﬂ 77 EARE
W AENEB JZ%EW%Z$

\

H]

X

principal amount for the time being remaining EEEHAREEER Y RE - &
discharged of all money borrowed by the Group not SEREBHKHBER tT (BNfE
exceeding 50% of the net asset value. The Group BFBERAKETHEER) EEIEE R o

monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-adjusted Eéﬁﬂ%ﬂjvﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂz%ﬁ%ﬂ?&ﬂ%ﬁ

capital ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted
capital. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the
statement of financial position date were as follows:

2011 2010

—E——F —ZE-ZF

HKS$ HK$

B ke

Interest-bearing borrowing ;‘Jr NN 50,000,000 -

Due to securities brokers 4ER B4 7 FRIB 22,864,546 6,862,643
Less: Cash balance maintained /UZ BHeREZIR®HEE

with a broker (23) (13,350,188)

Less: Bank balances and cash W SRITTEERRS (1,413,801) (3,851,951)

Net payable (receivable) c/f FERT R (FEUER) FRBsE e 71,450,722 (10,339,496)
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CHEBREEEERBE (£)

Capital management (Continued) EXERE (&)
2011 2010
—B——%F it S 1S
HKS$ HK$
it B
Net payable (receivable) b/f AT FERT 7 (FEUS X 71,450,722 (10,339,496)
Total equity B 185,634,471 473,981,496
Net of unrealised reserves ﬂimfﬁﬁ{% pecg-c] 39,409,871 (5,036,443)
Adjusted capital R E A 225,044,342 468,945,053

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio

ERHEARER L=

32% Not applicable

Fair value

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts
of financial instruments approximate their fair value
and accordingly no separate disclosure of the fair
value of these items are presented.

The fair value of listed securities included in
available-for-sale investments and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is based on the
quoted market bid prices available on the relevant
stock exchange.

Certain unlisted securities included in available-for-
sale investments are stated at fair value after the
carrying amounts are determined to be impaired.

The fair value of unlisted debt securities included
in financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale financial assets is arrived
by using Binomial Tree Pricing Model. Details of
the valuation are disclosed in note 16(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

ARE
EERAERIACZEEEEREAR
EAEE  E W ER T 2 Raxs
/NN (=10

I\
4H§

i
]

EWBEHFZARBEEATHEER
BERBRABRBRANBIRZEME
E WEHEBESRSFMERMmEE
UNELE

REREERETE RBERER » 5TA
AfHEREZETIFEMESRER
BT

FAAAEBEERAREIRZERE
ENAIHHEESRMEE I EHER
‘Kﬁﬁﬁ%ZQﬁEEM_Iﬁ‘Wﬁkm
EBEANAE - AHAEFBHNES
Eﬂ%#&%ﬁﬁﬁm( ) ©
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value disclosures

The following presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at 31 December
2011 and 2010 across the three levels of the
fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments;

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data;
and

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured

using valuation techniques in which any

significant input is not based on observable

market data.
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 27.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CHEBREBREERBE (£)

Assets measured at fair value BRAREFEZEE
2011 -
The
The Group Company
i | ¥ NG|
Level 1
Level 1 Level 2 Total and total
£-ER
£ $E &t X
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Financial assets at ZBRBRBRALEIE
fair value through ZEMEE
profit or loss
Listed equity FhERERE 56,143,081 - 56,143,081 7,685,069
investments
Unlisted debt I EMEBIRE - 34,000,000 34,000,000 -
investments
Available-for-sale AHEHERE
investments
Listed equity TTRERIEE 160,692,542 - 160,692,542 -
investments
216,835,623 34,000,000 250,835,623 7,685,069
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 27.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value (Continued)

CHEBREREEERBE (£)

BOAREFEZEE (&)

2010 —E-TF
The
The Group Company
AEE ViN/N
Level 1
Level 1 Level 2 Total and total
—EX
FE o= BEt BEt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B o B
Financial assets at ERBHEEDNAETIR
fair value through LEREE
profit or loss
Listed equity investments THERRE 89,946,293 - 89,946,293 13,156,000
Unlisted debt investments FEHEHKRE - 44,701,600 44,701,600 -
Available-for-sale AHEERE
investments
Listed equity investments FTREREE 314,091,572 - 314,091,572 -
Unlisted debt investments FLEMEBRE - 3,600,000 3,600,000 -
404,037,865 48,301,600 452,339,465 13,156,000
During the year ended 31 December 2011 and REBE_ZE——FR-_ZE-TF+=
2010, there were no transfers between Level 1 and A=T—BLFE YEEF-EKS
Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers “EARERECHNER  BESE

into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.
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28.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

At the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 20 January 2012, an ordinary
resolution in respect of the rights issue of the
Company (the "“Rights Issue”) was approved by the
independent shareholders.

The Company proposed to raise approximately
HK$86.24 million before expenses to approximately
HK$112.11 million before expenses by issuing not
less than 862,378,676 new shares and not more
than 1,121,092,276 new shares, respectively, to the
qualifying shareholders of the Company by way of
the Rights Issue at a subscription price of HK$0.10
per rights share on the basis of two rights shares for
every share held on 6 February 2012 (the “Record
Date”).

Based on the issued share capital of the Company
at the Record Date, 862,378,676 rights shares
were allotted and issued on 27 February 2012 and
proceeds of approximately HK$86.24 million (before
expenses) was raised.

28.

HEHEEE

RARBR —E——F— A - +HET
ZBRERFRAE L BEAAKNLQRHAR
(TR o EBAERREEB LK
HHLAE -

AR BEBRER 2 AR AEAR
B A B KRR AR B D B
OO e RBEBE DA FITAHL
78862,378,6761% ¥ f% 10 K I % 1
1,121,092,276 851 ixfh - EE AR
—E——F A8 ([Z&HH])
T H — IR D 0] 2 5 R AR 4 AR AR
15 AEE4)75%86,240,0007T (]
BRFAS AT 2478 %112,110,0007T
(FOBRFZAT) o

BEARFNREHABHZERITR
K BRZZE—-F-_A=-++tHRE
2% 12 3517862,378,6 76 AR B 17
W B EEFH)7E¥86,240,0007T (1
BrEAZAT) Z FT1S5RIHE o
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Financial Summary

MG E

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
“E--§ C—T-FF CZZENF ZETN\E CTTtF
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$
it Bk ot B Bk
Results E
Turnover (Restated) BEB (HLE])) (63,406,376)  (29,978,152)  (16,039,273)  (6,334,669)  (91,529,295)
Loss for the year FREE (246,407,511)  (64,961,714) (100,618,027) (458,429,088) (98,995,641)
Taxation 1A - . - - _
Loss attributable ARAIERHEA
to equity holders of the Company (LR (246,407,511)  (64,961,714) (100,618,027) (458,429,088)  (98,995,641)
Assets and liabilities EENER
Total assets BELR 260,160,401 481,395,760 299,091,228 185,081,654 447,924,232
Total liabilities BfEER (74,525,930)  (7,414,264)  (2,575,834) (31,630,802) (31,123,296
Total equity B 185,634,471 473,981,496 296,515,394 153,450,852 416,800,936
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